
292   Towards a Better Tomorrow

ñdV§Ì boImnarjH$ H$r {anmoQ© 
Independent Auditors’ Report

To,
The Members of IDBI Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial 
Statements of IDBI Bank Limited (the Bank) its subsidiaries, 
associates and joint venture (the Bank and its subsidiary companies 
together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated Profit and 
Loss Account, the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information annexed thereto, in which the 
following are incorporated:

i) Audited accounts of IDBI Bank Limited, audited by us, vide 
our audit report dated May 03, 2021.

ii) Audited accounts of 05 domestic subsidiaries and 01 joint 
venture audited by other auditors.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949, as well as the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India, in the 
manner so required for banking companies and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards (“AS”) prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with rules made thereunder, of the state 
of affairs of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entity as at 
March 31, 2021 and its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 18 (14) which describes the business 
uncertainties due to the outbreak of SARS-CoV-2 virus (COVID-19). 
In view of these uncertainties, the impact on the Group’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements is significantly dependent on 
future developments. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters 
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described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in 
our report:

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

Recognition and Measurement of Deferred Tax Asset

The Bank has recognised 
a net deferred tax asset of 
`  14,440.91 Crores as on 
March 31, 2021, including net 
reversal of `  1,308.68 Crores 
during the year. 

Besides objective estimation, 
recognition and measurement 
of deferred tax asset is 
based on the judgment and 
numerous estimates regarding 
the availability and visibility of 
profits in the future and also 
considering probable impact of 
Covid-19 pandemic. 

The amount of deferred tax 
assets recognised presumes 
availability and forecasting 
of profits over an extended 
period of time thus increasing 
uncertainty and the inherent 
risk of inappropriate recognition 
of the said asset.

Our audit procedures involved 
gaining an understanding of 
the applicable tax laws and 
relevant regulations applicable 
to the Bank. We performed 
the following audit procedures 
as part of our controls testing 
including:

used for recognition 
and measurement of 
deferred tax assets in 
accordance with AS 22 
Accounting for Taxes on 
Income;

of the availability 
of profits based on 
assumptions and other 
parameters used by the 
Management including 
the probable impact 
of Covid-19 pandemic 
against which the Bank 
will be able to use this 
deferred tax asset in 
the future with reference 
to forecast as noted by 
the Board of Directors 
while adopting the 
Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

for determining the 
Deferred Tax Asset with 
reference to applicable 
tax rates and tested the 
arithmetical accuracy.

Income Recognition and Asset Classification of Advances 
(IRAC) and Provisioning as per regulatory norms

Please refer to Note nos. 18(16) 
and 18(15) of Consolidated 
Financial Statement relating 
to Asset Quality in respect of 
movement of Non-Performing 
Assets (NPAs) and related 
provisions and disclosures 
with regard to Non-Performing 
Investments (NPI) respectively 
as also Note no. 18(14) 
regarding the provisions made 
due to the probable impact of 
Covid-19 pandemic.

Our audit approach included 
testing the design, operating 
effectiveness of internal 
controls and substantive 
audit procedures in respect 
of income recognition, asset 
classification and provisioning 
pertaining to advances and 
investments. In particular:

understood the Bank’s 
internal control system in 
adhering to the relevant
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Compliance of relevant 
prudential norms issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India 
(RBI) in respect of income 
recognition, asset classification 
and provisioning pertaining 
to advances as well as those 
pertaining to investments 
is a key audit matter due to 
materiality involved and the 
current processes at the 
Bank which requires manual 
interventions, management 
estimates and judgement.

 RBI guidelines regarding 
income recognition, 
asset classification and 
provisioning pertaining 
to advances and 
investments;

systems/ applications 
used and their design 
and implementation 
as well as operational 
effectiveness of relevant 
controls, including 
involvement of manual 
process and manual 
controls in relation to 
income recognition, 
asset classification and 
provisioning pertaining 
to advances and 
investments;

advances to examine 
the validity of the 
recorded amounts, 
loan documentation, 
examined the statement 
of accounts, indicators 
of impairment, 
impairment provision for 
non-performing assets, 
and compliance with 
income recognition, 
asset classification and 
provisioning pertaining 
to advances in terms 
of applicable RBI 
guidelines; 

the past trends 
of Management 
judgement, governance 
process and review 
controls over impairment 
provision calculations 
and discussed the 
provisions made with 
the top and senior 
Management of the 
Bank.

IT Systems and controls over financial reporting

The Bank’s key financial 
accounting and reporting 
processes are highly 
dependent on Core Banking 
and Treasury Solutions and 
other supporting software and 
hardware controls such that

designed and carried 
out the desired audit 
procedures and sample 
checks, taking into 
consideration the IT 
systems of the Bank.
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there exists a risk that gaps 
in the IT control environment 
could result in the financial 
accounting and reporting 
records being materially 
misstated. Appropriate IT 
controls are required to ensure 
that the IT applications perform 
as planned and the changes 
made are properly controlled. 
Such controls contribute to risk 
mitigation of erroneous output 
data. The audit outcome is 
dependent on the extent of IT 
controls and systems. 

Management regarding 
integration of systems in 
the areas of treasury and 
IRAC to evaluate their 
adequacy.

also relied on IS audit 
conducted by internal 
audit department, and 
also the audit of Internal 
Financial Control over 
Financial Reporting 
conducted by an 
independent firm of 
Chartered Accountants. 

automated and manual 
business cycle controls 
and logic for system 
generated reports 
relevant to the audit; 
including testing of 
compensating controls 
or performed alternate 
procedures to assess 
whether there were any 
unaddressed IT risks 
that would materially 
impact the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.  

Placing reliance on electronic evidence and performing of 
audit procedures during the mandatory national lockdown 
due to the Covid-19 pandemic

The Bank’s procedures 
of recording and storing 
information necessary for 
preparation of Consolidated 
Financial Statements and having 
them audited is combination 
of electronic and manual 
processes. These processes 
were required to be audited 
by us remotely without visiting 
the Bank’s premises due to the 
mandatory national lockdown 
and thereafter.  Bank provided 
us a secure virtual private 
network connection through 
which we could access the 
core banking solution and other 
software and the electronic 
data / information / documents 
shared on common drives.  
Had we been physically present 
at the Company premises, 
we would have otherwise

We have carried out the 
validation of the electronic 
evidence provided by the 
Management by performing the 
following procedures:

Management of the 
controls they have  
implemented to convert 
physical documents 
into electronic versions 
and understanding them

Management the 
method and controls 
used to extract 
information from its 
various softwares 
including Core Banking 
Solution, Treasury, IRAC, 
fixed assets & operating 
expenses, financial
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verified the physical copies 
of critical documents and we 
would have collected the audit 
evidence in physical copies.

  reporting and the CRAR 
computation softwares 
and understanding 
how the Management 
ensures completeness 
and accuracy

attributes of the 
electronic evidence 
obtained to ensure 
consistency and 
integrity.

 
tions from the 
Management wherever 
necessary.

Information Other Than Financial Statements and Auditors’ 
Report Thereon

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of 
information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report thereon. The Other Information comprises the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors’ Report including 
Annexures to Directors’ Report (collectively called as “Other 
Information”) but does not include the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon and the Pillar III 
Disclosures under the New Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel III 
disclosures). The Other information as above is expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this Auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not 
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
our responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above 
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated 
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the 
other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 
with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Bank’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group including 
its associate companies and jointly controlled entity in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act and 
provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and 
circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) 
from time to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
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maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective 
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, its 
associate companies and jointly controlled entity are responsible 
for assessing the ability of respective entities to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
respective Management either intends to liquidate their respective 
entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group including its associate companies and jointly controlled entity 
is also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of 
the Group including its associate companies and jointly controlled 
entity.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by Management.

the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group’s including its associate companies and jointly 
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controlled entity ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group including its associate companies and jointly 
controlled entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication

Other Matters

(i) We did not audit the financial statements of the foreign branch 
in Dubai included in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of the Bank whose financial statements reflect total assets of 
`  1,066.21 Crores as at March 31, 2021 and total revenue of 
` 74.73 Crores for the year ended on that date. This branch 
has been audited by a local branch auditor whose report has 
been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates 
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this 
branch, is based solely on the report of such branch auditor. 

(ii) We did not audit the financial statements of:

 (a) 05 domestic subsidiaries whose financial statements 
reflect the Group’s share of total assets of ` 839.28 
Crores as at March 31, 2021 and total revenues of 
` 315.04 Crores and net cash inflows amounting to 
` 51.99 Crores for the year then ended, which have 
been audited by their respective auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us and our opinion is 
based solely on the reports of the said auditors. 

 (b) 01 jointly controlled entity whose financial statements 
reflect the Group’s share of total assets of ` 373.28 
Crores as at March 31, 2021 and total revenues of 
`  41.31 Crores for the year then ended, which has 
been audited by its respective auditors whose reports 
have been furnished to us and our opinion is based 
solely on the reports of the said auditors. 
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 (iii) The Consolidated Financial Statements do not include 
share of profit / loss of 04 associates because these 
have not been considered on account of non-availability 
of their financial statements / financial information. 
In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us by the Management, these 
financial statements / financial information are not 
material to the Group – refer note 18(10).

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our 
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance 
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have 
been drawn up in accordance with the provision of Section 29 
of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of 
the Act and Rules made thereunder.

2. As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking 
Regulation Act, 1949, we report that:

 a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found 
them to be satisfactory.

 b) The transactions of the Group, which have come to 
our notice, have been within the powers of the Group.

 c) During the course of our audit we have visited 27 
branches to examine the records maintained at such 
branches for the purpose of our audit. As mentioned 
in our paragraph on Key Audit Matters above, due to 
the local lockdowns, the remainder audit procedures 
were conducted remotely. The returns received from 
the offices and branches of the Bank as supplemented 
with the information furnished by the Management 
have been found adequate for the purpose of our 
audit.

3. Further, as required by section 143(3) of Act, we report that:

 a) we have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Bank so far as appears 
from our examination of those books and proper 
returns adequate for the purpose of our audit have 
been received from the branches not visited by us;

 c) the report on the accounts of the Dubai branch of the 
Bank audited by other auditors has been forwarded to 
us and the same has been appropriately dealt with;

 d) the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account, and 
the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report 
are in agreement with the books of account;

 e) in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act and Rules made 
thereunder, to the extent they are not inconsistent with 
the accounting policies prescribed by RBI;
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f) on the basis of written representation received from the 
directors of the Bank as on March 31, 2021 and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Bank and the reports 
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and jointly 
controlled entity incorporated in India, none of the directors 
of the group companies including its jointly controlled entity 
are disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed 
as director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act 
2013;

g) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”;

h) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us and based on the report of the 
other auditors of subsidiaries & jointly controlled entity which 
was not audited by us, the remuneration paid by the group 
company and jointly controlled entity to its directors during 
the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 
and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. In case of 
Bank, being a banking company as defined under Banking 
Regulation Act, 1949 the requirements prescribed under 
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply by 
virtue of Section 35B(2A) of the Banking Regulation Act, 
1949.

i) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to 
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other 
auditors as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

 i) The Group and jointly controlled entity has disclosed 
the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 
in its financial statements to the extent determinable/
ascertainable. – Refer Schedule 18(12)(C) to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 ii) The Group and jointly controlled entity has made 
provision, as required, under the applicable law 
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on long term contracts including 
derivative contracts. Refer Schedule 18 (12) (B) to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Group and jointly controlled 
entity. Refer Schedule 18 (17)(V) to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

For K S Aiyar & Co. For M P Chitale & Co.

/ Chartered Accountants

/ ICAI FRN : 100186W
/ Chartered Accountants

/ ICAI FRN : 101851W

Satish Kelkar Ashutosh Pednekar

) / Partner  

ICAI M. No. 038934 

UDIN:21038934AAAACB2165

 / Partner

ICAI M. No. 041037
UDIN:21041037AAAACK8529

/ Place: Mumbai

/ Date: May 03, 2021
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date 
on the Consolidated Financial Statements of IDBI Bank Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of IDBI Bank Limited (“the Bank”) as at March 
31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly 
controlled entity ((the Bank and its subsidiary companies together 
referred to as “the Group”) for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective company’s Management and Board of Directors 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the respective company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance 
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the 
ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to respective Company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(“the Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing (“the SAs”), 
issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, both issued by the ICAI. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
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the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Group’s 
internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements

A Bank’s internal financial control with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Bank’s 
internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the Group, its associate companies and jointly 
controlled entity; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Bank 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
Management and Directors of the bank; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the Bank’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, its associate companies and jointly 
controlled entity needs to strengthen its review process and 
management testing of scrutiny and reconciliations of intermediary/
control accounts. In our opinion, the Group , its associate companies 
and jointly controlled entity has in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated 
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Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Group, its associate 
companies and jointly controlled entity considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

a) Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial 
Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 
insofar as it relates to the overseas branch audited by the 
branch auditor is based on the report of the respective branch 
auditor which has been sent to us and has been properly dealt 
with by us in preparing this report.

b) Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial 
Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 
insofar as it relates to subsidiary companies and joint venture, 
is based on the corresponding report of the respective 
auditors which has been sent to us and has been properly 
dealt with by us in preparing this report.

For K S Aiyar & Co. For M P Chitale & Co.

/ Chartered Accountants

/ ICAI FRN : 100186W
/ Chartered Accountants

/ ICAI FRN : 101851W

Satish Kelkar Ashutosh Pednekar

) / Partner  

ICAI M. No. 038934 

UDIN:21038934AAAACB2165

 / Partner

ICAI M. No. 041037
UDIN:21041037AAAACK8529

/ Place: Mumbai

/ Date: May 03, 2021

‚›¡¸ Ÿ¸¸Ÿ¸¥¸½ 
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(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Schedule As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 

/ Capital 1 10752 40 22 10380 59 40

/ Reserves and surplus 2 26875 63 67 24455 13 08

/ Minority Interest 112 98 19 103 57 93

/ Deposits 3 230706 80 59 222213 85 19

/ Borrowings 4 15908 05 32 36748 85 60

/ Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 14296 95 61 6797 05 15

/ TOTAL 298652 83 60 300699 06 35

 / ASSETS 

Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 13013 12 54 10539 17 27

Balances with banks and money at call and short notice 7 22294 99 38 19955 79 23

/ Investments 8 81470 88 10 81995 83 28

/ Advances 9 128152 39 27 129845 37 85

/ Fixed assets 10 7872 73 06 8206 75 95

/ Other assets 11 45848 71 25 50156 12 77

/ TOTAL 298652 83 60 300699 06 35

/ Contingent Liabilities 12 220742 81 92 117160 21 97

/ Bills for collection 9648 34 43 9870 72 91

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 17 & 18

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

(Rakesh Sharma) (J. Samuel Joseph) (Suresh Khatanhar) (Samaresh Parida) (Ajay Sharma)  (Jyothi Nair)

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
( /DIN: 06846594)

Dy. Managing Director
( /DIN: 02262530)

Dy. Managing Director

( /DIN: 03022106)
Director

( /DIN: 01853823) Executive Director & 
Chief Financial Officer

Company 
Secretary

As per our report of even date

For K S Aiyar & Co. For M P Chitale & Co.

/Chartered Accountants /Chartered Accountants

/FRN : 100186W /FRN : 101851W

Satish Kelkar Ashutosh Pednekar

 (  038934)/Partner  
(M.No. 038934)

 (  041037)/Partner (M.No. 041037)

/ Place: Mumbai

/ Date: May 03, 2021

g_o{H$V VwbZ-nÌ
Consolidated Balance Sheet

31 ‘mM© 2021 H$mo

as at March 31, 2021
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g_o{H$V bm^-hm{Z boIm
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

31 ‘mM© 2021 H$mo g‘má df© Ho$ {bE

for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Schedule
 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2021

 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

 I ‚¸¡¸ / INCOME 

/ Interest earned 13 19955 52 08 20854 18 84

/ Other Income 14 4848 10 97 4631 25 61

/ TOTAL  24803 63 05 25485 44 45

 II ¨¡¸¡¸ / EXPENDITURE 

/ Interest expended 15 11407 50 71 13841 11 92

/ Operating expenses 16 6175 98 96 6447 16 91

/ Provisions and contingencies 5771 45 96 18044 55 87

/ TOTAL  23354 95 63 38332 84 70

 III  / PROFIT 

Net Profit for the year 1448 67 42 (12847 40 25)

Add: Share of Profit in Associate 83 45 72 28 10 08

/  Less: Minority Interest 18 16 27 15 93 52

/ Group Profit  1513 96 87 (12835 23 69)

/ Profit brought forward (45409 98 53) (32371 67 30)

/ TOTAL  (43896 01 66) (45206 90 99)

 IV  / APPROPRIATIONS 

/ Transfer to Statutory Reserve 339 86 60  -   

/ Transfer to Capital Reserve 285 00 39 185 91 01

/ Transfer to General Reserve 2 19 32 3 51 75

/ Tax on Final dividend - 7 89 32

/ Tax on Interim/Final dividend - 5 75 46

Investment Fluctuation Reserve(IFR) 544 61 04 -

Balance carried over to balance sheet (45067 69 01) (45409 98 53)

/ TOTAL   (43896 01 66) (45206 90 99)



306   Towards a Better Tomorrow

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

(Rakesh Sharma) (J. Samuel Joseph) (Suresh Khatanhar) (Samaresh Parida) (Ajay Sharma)  (Jyothi Nair)

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
( /DIN: 06846594)

Dy. Managing Director
( /DIN: 02262530)

Dy. Managing Director

( /DIN: 03022106)
Director

( /DIN: 01853823) Executive Director & 
Chief Financial Officer

Company 
Secretary

As per our report of even date

For K S Aiyar & Co. For M P Chitale & Co.

/Chartered Accountants /Chartered Accountants

/FRN : 100186W /FRN : 101851W

Satish Kelkar Ashutosh Pednekar

 (  038934)/Partner  
(M.No. 038934)

 (  041037)/Partner (M.No. 041037)

/ Place: Mumbai

/ Date: May 03, 2021

Schedule
 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2021

 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 17 & 18

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & 
Loss Account 

g_o{H$V bm^-hm{Z boIm
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

31 ‘mM© 2021 H$mo g‘má df© Ho$ {bE

for the year ended March 31, 2021
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- / SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

/ Authorised capital 

` 
2500 00 00 000 (2500 00 00 000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each 25000 00 00 25000 00 00

25000 00 00 25000 00 00

/ Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital 

`

 
1075 24 02 175 (1038 05 93 998) Equity Shares of  ` 10 each  fully paid up
(Refer Schedule 18 Note 17(I)) 10752 40 22 10380 59 40

 / TOTAL 10752 40 22 10380 59 40

/ SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

I / Statutory Reserve

/ Opening balance 2474 74 70 2474 74 70

/ Additions during the year 339 86 60  -   

/ Deductions during the year  -     -   

2814 61 30 2474 74 70

II / Capital Reserve

/ Opening balance 3035 26 45 2874 87 61

/ Additions during the year 316 96 04 160 38 84

/ Deductions during the year 36 63 36  -   

3315 59 13 3035 26 45

III / Revaluation Reserve

Opening Balance 6503 36 63 6727 69 15

/ Additions during the year  -     -   

/ Transfer to General Reserve 221 91 90 224 32 52

6281 44 73 6503 36 63

IV / Share Premium

/ Opening balance 49668 89 70 43013 19 63

/ Additions during the year 1075 90 43 6655 70 07

/ Deductions during the year 12 52 03  -   

50732 28 10 49668 89 70

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

V / Revenue and other Reserve

/(a) / General Reserve

 / Opening balance 6610 49 09 6319 22 53

  
 Additions during the year (Net of Consolidation Adjustments) 6 77 16 1 92 39

 / Transferred from Revaluation Reserve 221 91 90 224 32 52

 
 Other Additions / (Deductions) during the year

(65 01 65) 65 01 65

6774 16 50 6610 49 09

(b)  Special Reserve under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

 / Opening balance 6 35 04 6 35 04

 / Additions during the year  -    -

 / Deductions during the year  -    -

6 35 04 6 35 04

(c)  Special Reserve created and maintained under Section 36(1)(viii) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961

 / Opening balance 1566 00 00 1566 00 00

 / Additions on account of merger -

 / Additions during the year - -

 / Deductions during the year - -

1566 00 00 1566 00 00

(d)  Investment Fluctuation Reserve

 / Opening balance -  -   

 / Additions during the year 544 61 04  -   

 / Deductions during the year -  -   

544 61 04  -   

VI / Balance in Profit and Loss account (45159 42 17) (45409 98 53)

/ TOTAL (I to VII) 26875 63 67 24455 13 08

 / SCHEDULE 2A - MINORITY INTEREST
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

/ Minority Interest 112 98 19 103 57 93

/ TOTAL 112 98 19 103 57 93

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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 / SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

‚ / A
I.  / Demand Deposits

(i)  / From banks 9738 03 10 14120 37 19

(ii)  / From others 30814 17 00 26342 73 82

40552 20 10 40463 11 01
II.  / Savings Bank Deposits 75890 52 52 65658 14 51

III.  / Term Deposits

(i)  / From banks 8808 16 14 10173 56 34

(ii)  / From others 105455 91 83 105919 03 33

114264 07 97 116092 59 67

 / TOTAL (I to III) 230706 80 59 222213 85 19

‚¸ / B
(i)  / Deposits of branches in India 230673 45 06 222172 77 48

(ii)  

Deposits of branches outside India 33 35 53 41 07 71

/ TOTAL 230706 80 59 222213 85 19

   

 - / SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

I. / Borrowings in India
(i) / Reserve Bank of India   - 10912 00 00

(ii) / Other banks 945 15 00 1098 85 00

(iii)

Tier l (Innovative Perpetual Debt Instrument)

  - 245 10 00

(iv) / Upper Tier ll bonds   - 1000 00 00

(v)  
Unsecured, Redeemable Bonds (Subordinated for Tier II Capital) 4641 40 00 5537 50 00

(vi) / Basel III Omni Tier 2 Bond 2645 00 00 2645 00 00

(vii) / Others* 6557 92 02 6776 33 75

II. / Borrowings outside India 1118 58 30 8534 06 85

/ TOTAL ( I and II ) 15908 05 32 36748 85 60

` ` 

Secured borrowings included in I and II above - ` 147 73 74Thousand ( ` 11278 44 91 Thousand)

` ` 

* Included  Perpetual Debt Instrument ` 850 00 00 Thousand ( ` 850 00 00 Thousand) which does not qualify for CRAR

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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 / SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

I.  / Bills Payable 1542 49 94 956 09 10

II.   / Inter office adjustments (net) - 2 54 12

III.  / Interest accrued 498 06 01 713 16 42

IV.  / Others (Including Provision)

(a) Prudential provisions against standard assets 2998 32 51 1159 59 87

(b) Advance payments received 407 74 66 413 51 31

(c) Dividend and dividend tax payable - -

(d) Sundry Creditors 130 42 47 144 23 24

(e) Service tax/TDS/Other taxes payable 92 95 88 88 06 97

(f) Sundry Deposits 18 49 23 47 38 46

(g) Other provisions 3684 78 03 2982 32 83

(h) Miscellaneous 4923 66 88 290 12 83

 / TOTAL ( I to IV ) 14296 95 61 6797 05 15

SCHEDULE  6 - CASH  AND  BALANCES WITH  RESERVE  BANK  OF  INDIA
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 I. 

Cash  in  hand  ( including foreign currency notes)  3092 46 90 2140 18 97

 II. Balances with Reserve Bank of India 

 (i)  in Current Accounts 9920 65 64 8398 98 30

 (ii) in Other Accounts   - -

/ TOTAL ( I and II ) 13013 12 54 10539 17 27

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES  WITH  BANKS  AND  MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 I   / In India 

 (i) / Balance with banks 

  
(a)  in Current Accounts  203 98 27 140 37 07

   
(b)  in Other Deposit Accounts 6698 97 40 936 22 50

 (ii) / Money at call and short notice 

   
(a)  with banks 

499 86 24   -

   
(b)  with other Institutions 

14175 00 00 11200 00 00

21577 81 91 12276 59 57

 II   / Outside India 

 (i)  / in Current Accounts  502 41 10 7618 65 53

 (ii)  / in Other Deposit Accounts 79 71 25 -

 (iii) / Money at call and short notice 135 05 12 60 54 13

717 17 47 7679 19 66

/ TOTAL ( I and II ) 22294 99 38 19955 79 23

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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 / SCHEDULE  8 - INVESTMENTS
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

I / Investments in India in 

(i) / Government Securities* 75834 83 35 77012 20 48

(ii) / Other approved securities - -

(iii) / Shares 1073 92 53 1259 96 61

(iv) / Debentures and Bonds  1452 49 35 2025 96 21

(v) / Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures 14 07 68 5 90 73

(vi) 

Others (CPs, Units in MFs, SRs,PTCs) 2912 04 63 850 16 63

81287 37 54 81154 20 66

 II  / Investments outside India in 

(i) 

Government Securities (including local authorities) 183 50 56 841 62 62

(ii)  / Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures   -   -

(iii) / Other investments (shares)   - -

183 50 56 841 62 62

/ TOTAL ( I and II ) 81470 88 10 81995 83 28

 III  / Investments in India 

/ Gross value of investments 85806 33 54 84103 58 41

/ Less: Aggregate  provision / depreciation 4518 96 00 2949 37 75

/ Net investments 81287 37 54 81154 20 66

 IV  / Investments Outside India  

/ Gross value of investments 183 50 56 841 62 62

/ Less:Aggregate  provision / depreciation -   -

/ Net investments 183 50 56 841 62 62

` `

* Includes Special GOI Securities of ` 12438 00 00 Thousand (Previous year ` 12438 00 00 Thousand) classified as Non-SLR-HTM Securities.

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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 ‚¢ŠÏŸ¸ / SCHEDULE  9 - ADVANCES
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 ‚ / A
(i) 

Bills purchased and discounted/ rediscounted 622 24 57 631 12 73

(ii) 

Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayable on demand 34242 49 65 37464 21 65

(iii) / Term loans* 93287 65 05 91750 03 47

/ TOTAL   128152 39 27 129845 37 85

 ‚¸ / B
(i) Secured by tangible assets** 121397 13 12 123498 96 62

(ii) 

Covered by Bank / Government guarantees*** 705 74 63 72 33 62

(iii) Unsecured 6049 51 52 6274 07 61

/ TOTAL   128152 39 27 129845 37 85

  / C

 I / Advances in India 

(i) Priority sector 63839 62 20 61543 41 59

(ii) Public sector 1601 43 53  -   

(iii) Banks 281 48 03 111 48 28

(iv) Others 60229 94 50 63189 48 65

/ TOTAL   125952 48 26 124844 38 52

 II / Advances Outside India 

(i) Due from banks  -     -   

(ii) Due from others: - -

 

(a) Bills purchased and discounted -  -   

 

(b)  Syndicated loans 396 79 91 898 65 04

  

(c) Others 1803 11 10 4102 34 29

 / TOTAL   2199 91 01 5000 99 33

 / TOTAL (C I and C II) 128152 39 27 129845 37 85

* ` ` 
* Includes Inter Bank Participatory Certificate (Net) ` Nil  Thousand (Previous Year ` 755 00 00 Thousand)   

** Includes advances against book debts   

*** Includes advances against letter of credit issued by banks. 

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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 / SCHEDULE  10 - FIXED ASSETS
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 I 

Premises (Refer Schedule  18 Note (2))

Opening Balance (At Cost) 7289 30 52 7211 04 14

Addition during the year 30 01 70 78 67 40

Revaluation made during the year

- -

Deductions during the year 41 47 01  41 02

Depreciation to date  474 06 93 242 69 15

   6803 78 28 7046 61 36

 II 

Other fixed assets (including Furniture & Fixtures) 

Opening Balance (At Cost) 2233 20 92 2103 14 37

Addition during the year 117 85 66 447 10 14

Deductions during the year 63 38 10 317 03 59

Depreciation to date 1689 37 43 1560 63 33

   598 31 05 672 57 59

 III Assets given on Lease 

Opening Balance 601 81 79 601 81 79

Addition during the year  -     -   

Lease Adjustment account - -

Deductions during the year  -     -   

Depreciation to date 600 05 27 600 05 27

Provision for Non Performing assets  1 76 52 1 76 52

   - -

 IV Capital Work-in-Progress   470 63 73 487 57 00

/ TOTAL ( I to IV ) 7872 73 06 8206 75 95

   

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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 / SCHEDULE  11 - OTHER  ASSETS
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

I Inter office adjustments (net)  73 59  2 51

II Interest accrued 2108 71 41 2441 93 60

III

Tax paid in advance /tax deducted at source (net) 6540 19 21 5999 75 97

IV Stationery and stamps  16 13  16 46

V

Non Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (at cost)* 791 98 93 791 98 93

VI ‚›¡¸ Others 

Deferred Tax Asset (net) 14448 90 11 15759 54 28

Shares / Bonds Pending allotment - -

Sundry deposit and advances 466 69 89 222 45 27

Claims receivable 326 50 87 334 83 82

Expenses / Disbursements in respect of cases transferred to Stressed Assets 
Stabilization Fund (SASF) 149 31 85 142 90 32

Miscellaneous** 21015 49 26 24462 51 61

 / TOTAL ( I to VI ) 45848 71 25 50156 12 77

` `
* Amount outstanding net of provisions is ` 78 38 93 Thousand (Previous year ` 78 38 93 Thousand)     

` `
** Includes Investment in Priority sector  deposit ` 18037 39 45 Thousand (Previous year ` 23831 46 08 Thousand)    
 

  

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated
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 / SCHEDULE  12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

I 

Claims not acknowledged as debts 322 19 50 174 22 16

II 

Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts 158173 95 82 44359 37 15

III 

Guarantees given on behalf of constituents 

 

(a)  - in India 37655 65 94 40893 62 16

 

(b) - outside India 802 56 19 946 84 43

IV 

Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations 9904 65 41 7429 04 89

V 

Liability in respect of interest rate and currency swaps and credit default swaps 10824 76 32 20225 07 80

VI 

Liability in respect of other Derivative contracts 423 31 87 696 10 69

VII

Capital commitment  17 90  15 56

VIII 

On account of disputed Income tax, Interest tax, penalty and interest demands  2408 63 76 2250 45 86

IX Others 226 89 21 185 31 27

 / TOTAL ( I to IX) 220742 81 92 117160 21 97

 / SCHEDULE  13 - INTEREST EARNED
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

I Interest/discount on advances/bills 11821 16 98 13092 89 69

II Income on investments 5160 89 73 5788 09 13

III 

Interest on balances with RBI and other inter-bank funds  

648 74 13 454 20 92

IV Others  2324 71 24 1518 99 10

/ TOTAL  ( I to IV ) 19955 52 08 20854 18 84

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements
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‚›¡¸ ‚¸¡¸ / SCHEDULE  14 - OTHER INCOME
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

I 

Commission, exchange and brokerage 1870 01 47 2010 56 51

II 

Profit/(Loss) on sale of investments (net)  1728 33 85 891 20 92

III 

Profit/(Loss) on revaluation of investments (net)  1 37 24 2 90 84

IV 

Profit/(Loss) on sale of land, buildings and other assets (net) ( 42 02) (4 74 25)

V 

Profit/(Loss) on exchange transactions / Derivatives (net) 376 01 26 548 72 27

VI 

Dividend income from subsidiary companies and / or joint ventures in India - -

VII Recovery from written off cases 547 55 68 828 06 49

VIIl Miscellaneous Income  325 23 49 354 52 83

/ TOTAL  ( I to VIII ) 4848 10 97 4631 25 61

 / SCHEDULE  15 - INTEREST EXPENDED
(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

 I Interest on deposits 9248 44 15 11089 61 54

 II Interest on RBI / inter bank borrowings 553 58 57 492 81 97

 III Others  1605 47 99 2258 68 41

/ TOTAL  (I to III) 11407 50 71 13841 11 92

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
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 / SCHEDULE  16 - OPERATING EXPENSES

(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

 I Payments to and provisions for employees  3223 47 44 3363 71 33

 II Rent, taxes and lighting  478 70 33 456 25 37

 III Printing and stationery 34 64 93 43 32 25

 IV Advertisement and publicity 26 55 60 37 51 18

 V Depreciation on bank’s property  396 84 73 394 37 91

 VI Director’s fees, allowances and expenses 1 88 23 1 55 66

 VII Auditor’s fees and expenses  2 80 68 2 66 55

 VIII Law charges 15 19 35 19 29 12

 IX Postage, telegrams, telephones etc. 76 88 73 89 49 88

 X Repairs and maintenance 87 27 72 79 63 97

 XI Insurance 259 53 61 204 03 49

 XII Others 

 

(a)  Banking expenses 127 11 04 111 33 23

 

(b)  Card & ATM expenses 289 61 29 397 16 85

 

(c)  Consultancy expenses 34 98 91 17 02 77

 

(d)  Expenses for recovery of write off cases 3 42 84 4 85 02

 

(e)  Outsourcing expenses 564 03 03 618 35 21

 

(f)  IT expenses 101 17 65 37 76 05

 

(g)  Staff training & other expenses 1 52 74 15 05 41
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(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

 

(h) Travelling and conveyance charges 19 68 30 32 91 00

 

(i)  Treasury expenses 5 31 26 4 23 84

 

(j)  Fee and other expenses for borrowing  71 12  77 97

 

(k) Other expenditure 424 59 43 515 82 85

/ TOTAL ( I to XII ) 6175 98 96 6447 16 91

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements



320   Towards a Better Tomorrow

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated 

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements

SCHEDULE 17 - CONSOLIDATED SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1  / Basis of Preparation:

 

 The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with requirements prescribed under the Third Schedule of the 
Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements, in all material aspects, 
conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) & 
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA) from time to time, the provisions of Insurance Act, 1938, as amended by 
the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015, the Companies Act , 2013 and the Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rules made 
there under, provisions of the Act (to the extent notified) and practices generally prevalent in the banking industry in India. The Group 
follows the accrual method of accounting, except where otherwise stated, and the historical cost convention. The accounting 
policies have been consistently applied by the Group and are consistent with those used in the previous year except where otherwise  
stated.

2  / Preparation of Consolidation:

 

 The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IDBI Bank Limited (parent company – “the Bank”) and all its Subsidiaries/
Associates /Joint Venture/ as defined in Accounting Standard AS-21 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, AS-23 ‘Accounting for 
Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements’ and AS-27 `Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures’. The 
financial statements of the subsidiaries/associates/joint venture used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as 
that of the Bank i.e. year ended March 31, 2021. 

 

 The financial statements of the Bank have been combined with: (a) its subsidiaries on a line by line basis by adding the book values of 
like items of assets, liabilities, income & expenses, (b) its joint venture on a line by line basis by consolidating the proportionate book 
values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The elimination has been considered on proportionate basis equivalent 
to the stake. c) its associates by consolidating as per Equity method as per AS-23. Intra Group transactions have been eliminated on 
consolidation. 

 

 The difference between cost to the parent of its investment in the subsidiaries and the parent’s portion of the equity of the subsidiaries/
associates is recognized in the financial statements as goodwill/ capital reserve.

 
 Minority interest in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries consists of:
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 (a) The amount of equity attributable to the minorities at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made; and

 
 (b) The minorities’ share of movements in equity since the date the parent-subsidiary relationship came into existence.

 The entities considered in the consolidated financial statements are:

SN
 

Name of the company Country of 
Incorporation

% of ownership interest as at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

‚)
A) Financial Subsidiary Companies:

1)

IDBI Capital Market & Securities Limited India 100 100

2)

IDBI Asset Management Limited India 66.67 66.67

‚¸)
B) Non-Financial Subsidiary Companies:

1)

IDBI Intech Limited. India 100 100

2)

IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited India 100 100

3)

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

India

54.70 54.70

ƒ)
C) Life Insurance Joint Venture:

1)

Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited India 25 48

ƒÄ)
D) Associate Companies:

1)

National Securities Depository Limited India 26.10 26.10

2)

Biotech Consortium India Limited

India

27.93 27.93

3)

North Eastern Development Finance Corporation 
Limited

India
25 25

4)

Pondicherry Industrial Promotion Development And 
Investment Corporation Limited (PIPDICL) 

India 21.14 21.14
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3  / Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets, liabilities, expenses, income and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements. Management 
believes that these estimates and assumptions are reasonable and prudent. However, actual results could differ from estimates. Any 
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

4 Revenue Recognition:

 
 Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 

measured.

 A. In case of IDBI Bank Limited, 

  i. 

   Interest income is recognized on accrual basis except in the case of non-performing assets where it is recognized upon 
realization as per the prudential norms of the RBI. 

  ii. 
   Commissions on Letter of Credit (LC)/ Bank Guarantee (BG) are accrued over the period of LC/ BG. 

  iii. 

   Fee based income are accrued on certainty of receipt and is based on milestones achieved as per terms of agreement 
with the client.

  iv. 
   Income on discounted instruments is recognized over the tenure of the instrument on a constant yield basis.

  v. 

   For listed companies, dividend is booked on accrual basis when the right to receive is established. For unlisted companies 
dividend is booked as and when received.

  vi. 
   In case of Non-performing advances, recovery is appropriated as per the policy of the bank

 
 B. In case of IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited, 

  i. 

   Total consideration paid or received on purchase or sale, on outright basis, of coupon-bearing debt securities is identified 
separately as principal consideration and accrued interest. Amount paid as accrued interest on purchase, and received 
on sale, of such securities is netted and reckoned as expense or income by way of interest. 

  ii. 

   Interest on fixed coupon debt securities, held as on the Balance Sheet date, is accrued for the broken period at the 
coupon rate. Interest on floating rate securities is accrued at rates determined as per the terms of the issue.
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  iii. 

   Profit on Sale of Investments is recognized on the settlement date. It represents the excess of Sale / Redemption 
proceeds over the acquisition cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Profit on sale of Investments is 
netted with loss on sale of Investments.

  iv. 

   Devolvement of equity shares in respect of issues underwritten by the company are treated as investments. Underwriting 
income on these issues are credited to profit and loss account and not netted against the value of investments.

  v. 

   Brokerage and commission earned on secondary market operations is recognized on the basis of trade dates. Brokerage 
on online portal operations is recognized on the basis of trade dates. Brokerage and commission in respect of issue 
marketing and resource mobilization are accrued to the extent of availability of information. Depository, Portfolio 
Management and other fees are accounted for on accrual basis. Dividend is recognized when the company’s right to 
receive payment is established by the balance sheet date. Revenue excludes Service Tax/GST, wherever recovered. 

  vi. 

   Purchases and sales of dated government securities, treasury bills and other securities in the nature of stock in trade are 
disclosed in the Profit and Loss Account, with a view to indicating the turnover of funds of the company and include only 
outright transactions. For this purpose, sales also include redemption proceeds, if any, when these securities are held by 
the company till the date of maturity.

 C. In case of IDBI Asset Management Limited,

  i. 

   Investment Management fees: Investment Management fees are recognized net-off service tax/GST on an accrual 
basis as a percentage of the average daily net assets of the schemes of IDBI Mutual funds, such that it does not 
exceed the rates prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996 (the 
‘Regulations’) as amended

  ii. 

   Other income: Interest income is accounted for on period proportion basis. The profit/loss on the sale of investments 
is recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss on the trade date using the FIFO method for arriving at purchase cost. 
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

  iii. 

   Interest on interest bearing securities is accrued on the coupon rate. On purchase of such investments, interest paid for 
the period from the last interest due date up to the date of purchase is not treated as a cost of purchase but is treated 
as interest recoverable. Similarly, interest received at the time of sale for the period from the last interest due date up to 
the date of sale is not treated as part of sale value but is treated as interest recovered. In case of premium /discount on 
securities the same is being amortized over the tenure. 
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 D. In case of IDBI MF Trustee Limited,

  i. 

   Trusteeship fees: Trusteeship fees is recognized on accrual basis as a percentage of the average daily net assets of the 
schemes of IDBI Mutual funds, such that it does not exceed the rates prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (‘SEBI’) (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996 (the ‘Regulations’) and any other amendments or offer document of the 
respective schemes.

  ii. 

   Other income: Income from Investments is accounted on accrual basis. Dividend income is recognized when the right to 
receive dividend is established.

 
 E. In case of IDBI Intech Limited, 

  i. 

   Revenue is primarily derived from software development and related services and from the licensing of the software 
products. The Company also generates revenue from call center services. Arrangement with customers for software 
development and related services are either on a fixed price, fixed-timeframe or on a time-and-material basis. In case of 
fixed price and fixed time framed contracts, where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectivity of consideration, 
are recognized using percentages of completion method of value of the contract and completed service. When there is 
uncertainty to the measurement or ultimate collectivity, revenue recognition is postpone until such uncertainty is resolved.

  ii. 

   Revenue from sale of software applications and products are recognized on transfer of property of goods or on 
achievement of milestone.

  iii. 
   Revenue from Annual Technical Services (ATS) are recognized proportionately over the period in which services are 

rendered.

  iv. 

   Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of software products is recognised as the 
related services are performed. 

  v. 

   Provision for estimated losses, if any, from the incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses 
become probable based on the current estimate. The impact of any revision in contract value of the percentage of work 
completed is reflected in the year in which the change becomes known. Amount received or billed in advance of services 
performed are recorded as unearned revenue. Unbilled services included in other current assets represents amount 
recognized based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms. Revenue is reported 
net of discount / incentive.
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  vi. 

   Revenue from call centre arises from unit priced contracts, time based contracts, cost based projects and engagement 
services. Such revenue is recognised on completion of the related services and is billed in accordance with the specific 
terms of the contract with the client.

  vii. 
   Interest Income is recognised on time proportion basis.

 
 F. In case of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited, 

  i. 

   The company derives its revenue from Acceptance Fees, Service Charges, Documentation Charges, Locker Rentals 
and Income from investments in Bank Fixed Deposit and Mutual Funds, which are accounted for on accrual basis. 
Assignments are to be classified as irregular assignments if any outstanding dues are not recovered till the end of next 
two financial years. Income in respect of such irregular assignments is accounted for in the year of receipt. Any previous 
year/s amounts outstanding against such irregular assignments are written off as bad debt in year of such determination. 
Other Debts are considered as bad and written off when ultimate realisation is uncertain.

  ii. 
   A bad debt provision is recognized at the year-end where it is ascertain that the outstanding dues are doubtful of recovery 

as under:

   
    Debtors over 18 months - 75%

     
    Additional provision on case to case basis where chances of recovery is negligible - 100%

  iii. 

   Interest income on investment recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account amount outstanding and the 
applicable interest rate. It is included in other income.

 
 G. In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited,

  (i) 
   Premium Income:

   

   For non-linked business, premium (net of Service Tax / goods and services tax) is recognized as income when due. 
Premium on lapsed policies is recognized as income when such policies are reinstated. For non-linked variable insurance 
business, premium is recognized as income on the date of receipt. Commuted premium is considered as due in the year 
of commutation and is considered as renewal premium. Top up premiums are considered as single premium. For linked 
business, premium is recognized as income when the associated units are allotted.
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  (ii) 
   Income from Linked fund:

   

   Income from linked funds which includes fund management charges, policy administration charges, cost of insurance, 
etc. are recovered from the linked fund in accordance with terms and conditions of policy and are accounted on accrual 
basis.

  (iii) 
   Income Earned on Investments:

   

   Interest income on investments is recognized on accrual basis. Accretion of discount and amortization of premium 
relating to debt securities is recognized over the holding/maturity period on a straight-line basis. Interest income earned 
on loan against insurance policies is recognized on accrual basis and is included in interest income on investments. 
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. Income from Alternative Investment 
Funds is recognized when the income is distributed by the fund. Profit or loss on sale of debt securities for other than 
linked business is the difference between the net sale consideration and the amortized cost, which is computed on a 
weighted average basis, as on the date of sale.

   

   Profit or Loss on sale of equity shares, mutual funds and alternative investment fund units for other than linked business 
is the difference between the net sale consideration and the carrying amount, which is computed on weighted average 
basis, as on the date of sale and includes the accumulated changes in the fair value previously recognized under “Fair 
Value Change Account”. Profit or loss on sale of investment held for linked business is the difference between the net sale 
consideration and the carrying amount, which is computed on a weighted average basis, as on the date of sale. Income 
in respect of any asset classified as Sub-Standard Assets is recognized as Income on the date of receipt.

  (iv) 
   Fees and Charges 

   

   Recovery towards administration and fund management expenses from the Unclaimed Amount of Policyholders in 
accordance with IRDAI regulations is accounted on accrual basis 

5 Advances and Provisions:

 i. 

  Advances are classified into Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss assets and provisions are made in accordance with the 
prudential norms prescribed by RBI. Advances are stated net of provisions towards non-performing advances. 

 ii. 

  Advances are classified as `Secured by Tangible Assets’ when security of at least 10% of the advance has been stipulated/
created against tangible security including book debts. Security in the nature of escrow, guarantee, comfort letter, charge on 
brand, license, patent, copyright etc are not considered as `Tangible Assets’.
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 iii. 

  Amounts recovered against debts written-off in earlier years and provisions no longer considered necessary in the context of the 
current status of the borrower are recognized as income in the Profit and Loss account.

 iv. 
  The Bank does not make any floating provision for bad and doubtful advances and investments.

 v. 
  Provision on loans and advances restructured/rescheduled is made in accordance with the applicable RBI guidelines on 

restructuring of loans and advances by Banks.

 vi. 

  The Bank had made countercyclical provisioning buffer as required by RBI guidelines, in earlier years, with the approval of the 
Board, which can be utilized within the limits and in the circumstances permitted by Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

6 Investments:

 
 A. In case of IDBI Bank Limited

  I. Classification:

   

   In terms of extant guidelines of the RBI on Investment classification and Valuation, the entire investment portfolio is 
categorized as:

   i. Held To Maturity, 

   ii. Available For Sale and 

   iii. Held For Trading. 

   
   Investments under each category are further classified as:

   i. Government Securities 

   ii. Other Approved Securities 

   iii. Shares 

   iv. Debentures and Bonds 

   v. Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures 

   vi. 
    Others (Commercial Paper, Mutual Fund Units, Security Receipts, Pass through Certificate). 

  II. Basis of Classification:

   
   a) Investments that the Bank intends to hold till maturity are classified as ‘Held to Maturity’. 

   

   b) Investments that are held principally for sale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified as ‘Held for 
Trading’.

   
   c) Investments, which are not classified in the above two categories, are classified as ‘Available for Sale’. 
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   d) An investment is classified as ‘Held To Maturity’, ‘Available For Sale’ or ‘Held For Trading’ at the time of its 
purchase and subsequent shifting amongst categories and its valuation is done in conformity with RBI guidelines. 

   

   e) Investment in subsidiaries and joint venture are normally classified as ‘Held To Maturity’ except in case, on need 
based reviews, which are shifted to ‘Available for Sale’ category as per RBI guidelines. The classification of 
investment in associates is done at the time of its acquisition.

  III. Valuation:

   i) In determining the acquisition cost of an investment:

    

    a)  Brokerage, commission, stamp duty, and other taxes paid are included in cost of acquisition in respect 
of acquisition of equity instruments from the secondary market whereas in respect of other investments, 
including treasury investments, such expenses are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

    

    b)  Broken period interest paid/ received is excluded from the cost of acquisition/ sale and treated as interest 
expense/ income.

    
    c) Cost is determined on the weighted average cost method.

   ii) 

    Investments ‘Held To Maturity’ are carried at acquisition cost unless it is more than the face value, in which case 
the premium is amortized on straight line basis over the remaining period of maturity. Diminution, other than 
temporary, in the value of investments, including those in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates, under this 
category is provided for each investment individually. 

   iii) 

    Investments ‘Held For Trading’ and ‘Available For Sale’ are marked to market scrip-wise and the resultant net 
depreciation, if any, in each category is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account, while the net appreciation, if 
any, is ignored.

    
    a)  Treasury Bills, commercial papers and certificates of deposit being discounted instruments are valued at 

carrying cost,

    
    b)  In respect of traded/ quoted investments, the market price is taken from the trades/ quotes available on the 

stock exchanges. 

    

    c)  Quoted Government Securities are valued at market prices and unquoted/non-traded government 
securities are valued at prices declared by Financial Benchmark India Pvt Ltd (FBIL).
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    d)  Unquoted shares are valued at break-up value or at Net Asset Value if the latest balance sheet is available, 
else, at Re. 1/- per company and units of mutual fund are valued at repurchase price as per relevant RBI 
guidelines. 

    

    e)  Unquoted fixed income securities (other than government securities) are valued on Yield to Maturity 
(YTM) basis with appropriate mark-up over the YTM rates for Central Government securities of equivalent 
maturity. Such mark-up and YTM rates applied are as per the relevant rates published by Fixed Income 
Money Market and Derivative Association of India (FIMMDA)/FBIL.

    

    f)  Security receipts issued by the asset reconstruction companies are valued in accordance with the 
guidelines applicable to such instruments, prescribed by RBI from time to time. Accordingly, in cases where 
the cash flows from security receipts issued by the asset reconstruction companies are limited to the actual 
realisation of the financial assets assigned to the instruments in the concerned scheme, the Bank reckons 
the net asset value obtained from the asset reconstruction company from time to time, for valuation of such 
investments at the end of each reporting period.

    

    g)  Quoted Preference shares are valued at market rates and unquoted/non-traded preference shares are 
valued at appropriate yield to maturity basis, not exceeding redemption value as per RBI guidelines.

    

    h)  Investment in Stressed Assets Stabilisation Fund (SASF) is categorized as Held To Maturity and valued at 
cost. Provision is made for estimated shortfall in eventual recovery by September 2024.

    

    i)  VCF investments held in HTM category are valued at Carrying Cost and those held in AFS category are 
valued on NAVs received from Fund Houses.

      

    j)  PTC investments are presently held only under AFS category and are valued on Yield to Maturity (YTM) 
basis with appropriate mark-up over the YTM rates for Central Government securities of equivalent maturity 
and the spreads applicable are that of NBFC bonds. Such mark-up and YTM rates applied are as per the 
relevant rates published by Fixed Income Money Market and Derivative Association of India (FIMMDA)/
FBIL. MTM Provision is done on monthly basis.

    

    Profit or Loss on sale of investments is credited/ debited to Profit and Loss Account. However, profits on sale of 
investments in ‘Held to Maturity’ category is first credited to Profit and Loss Account and thereafter appropriated, 
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net of applicable taxes to the Capital Reserve Account at the year/period end. Loss on sale is recognized in the 
Profit and Loss Account. 

    Investments are stated net of provisions.

  IV.  Repo and reverse repo transactions:

   

   In accordance with the RBI guidelines repo and reverse repo transactions in government securities and corporate debt 
securities (including transactions conducted under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (‘LAF’) and Marginal Standby Facility 
(‘MSF’) with RBI) are reflected as borrowing and lending transactions respectively. Borrowing cost on repo transactions 
is accounted as interest expense and revenue on reverse repo transactions is accounted as interest income.

 
 B. In case of IDBI Assets Management Limited,

  

  Investments which are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date, on which such 
investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments. 
Current investments are carried at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, 
provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction 
being determined and made for each investment individually. 

 
 C. In case of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited,

  

  All investments which are held, since a long period, same are classified as Non-Current Investments. Long term investments are 
stated at cost. Decline in value of long term investment is recognized, if considered other than temporary.

 
 D. In case of IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited,

  

  a. Investments are classified into non-current and current investments. Securities and other financial assets acquired and 
held for earning income by way of dividend and interest and for the purpose of capital appreciation are classified as 
non-current investments and are valued at their cost of acquisition. Decline in their value other than temporary, if any, is 
recognized. Current investments are carried at lower of cost or market value. Securities acquired in the market making 
process as market maker are classified as Current Investments irrespective of the period of holding.

   

   Securities acquired with the intention of short-term holding and trading are considered as stock-in-trade and regarded as 
current assets. 
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  b. Securities held as stock-in-trade category wise are valued at lower of cost or market/fair value. Cost is derived by 
following the weighted average method considering only outright transactions. Market value is determined based on 
market quotes for actual trades and where such quotes are not available, fair value is determined, in the case of debt 
securities, with reference to yields on securities of similar maturity and credit standing, and in the case of equities, 
with reference to the break-up value as per the last available balance sheet. Each security is valued individually. The 
depreciation, if any, for each security is provided and the appreciation, if any, is ignored. 

  

  c. Premium paid on government securities held as investment is amortized over the tenor of the instrument. 

 
 E. In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited,

  i. 

   Investments are made in accordance with the Insurance Act, 1938 as amended by Insurance Law (Amendment) Act, 
2015, the IRDAI (Investment) Regulations, 2016, and various other circulars / notifications and amendments issued by 
the IRDA in this context from time to time. 

  ii. 

   Investments are recorded at cost on the date of purchase, which includes brokerage and taxes, if any, and excludes 
accrued interest.

   

   (a) Classification:

    i. 

      Investments maturing within twelve months from the balance sheet date and investments made with the 
specific intention to dispose them off within twelve months from the balance sheet date are classified as 
short term investments.

    ii. 

       Investments other than short-term investments are classified as long-term investments.

   (

   (b) Valuation - shareholders’ investments and non-linked policyholders’ investments

    i.  

 

      All debt securities are considered as ‘held to maturity’ and accordingly stated at historical cost, subject to 
amortization of premium or accretion of discount over the period of maturity/holding on a straight line basis.

    ii. 
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      Listed equity shares as at the balance sheet date are stated at fair value being the quoted closing price on 

the Primary Exchange – ‘National Stock Exchange (‘NSE’)’. In case the equity share is not listed/traded on 
the Primary Exchange the quoted closing price on the Secondary Exchange – ‘Bombay Stock Exchange 
(‘BSE’)’, is considered as fair value. Mutual fund units as at the balance sheet date are valued at the 
previous day’s net asset values. Alternative investment fund units as at the balance sheet date are valued 
at last NAV available from the fund house. Equity shares awaiting listing are stated at historical cost subject 
to provision for diminution, if any, in the value of such investment determined separately for each individual 
investment. 

    iii. 

      Unrealized gains/losses arising due to changes in the fair value of listed equity shares and mutual fund units 
are taken to “Fair Value Change Account” and carried forward in the balance sheet.

    iv.  

      Any impairment loss is recognized as an expense in Revenue or Profit and Loss Account to the extent of 
the difference between the re-measured fair value of the security or investment and its acquisition cost as 
reduced by any previous impairment loss recognized as expense in Revenue or Profit and Loss Account. 
Any reversal of previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in Revenue or Profit and Loss Account.

   (
   (c) Valuation - linked business

    i. 

      Government Securities are valued at prices obtained from Fixed Income Money Market and Derivative 
Association of India (FIMMDA). Debt Securities other than Government Securities are valued at Fair Value 
using Yield Matrix for Bonds released by Rating Agency, on a daily basis. 

    ii.  

      Money Market Instruments i.e. Certificate of Deposit, Collateral Borrowing and Lending Obligation are 
valued at cost, subject to accretion of discount or amortization of premium over the holding/maturity period 
on a straight line basis. Other Money Market instruments like Commercial Papers, Treasury Bills are valued 
based on yield curve / prices obtained from FIMMDA in line with IRDAI guidelines. 

    iii.  

      Listed equity shares as at the balance sheet date are stated at fair value being the quoted closing price on 
the Primary Exchange – ‘National Stock Exchange (‘NSE’)’. In case the equity share is not listed/traded on 
the Primary Exchange the quoted closing price on the Secondary Exchange – ‘Bombay Stock Exchange 
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(‘BSE’)’, is considered as fair value. Mutual fund units are valued at the previous day’s net asset values. 
Equity shares awaiting listing are stated at historical cost subject to provision of diminution, if any, in the 
value of such investment determined separately for each individual investment. 

    iv. 

     Unrealized gains/losses on investments are recognized in the respective fund’s Revenue Account.

   (

(d) Transfer of investments

     

     Transfer of investments from Shareholders’ Fund to the Policyholders’ Fund is at carrying amount or market price, 
whichever is lower. However in case of debt securities all transfers are carried out at the net amortized cost. 
Transfer of investments between unit linked funds is done at market price.

7 Derivative Transactions:

 
 A. In Transactions designated as `Hedge’:

  
  a) Net interest payable/ receivable on derivative transactions is accounted on accrual basis.

  

  b) On premature termination of hedge swaps, any profits/ losses are recognised over the remaining contractual life of the 
swap or the residual life of the asset/ liability whichever is lesser.

  
  c) Re-designation of hedge swaps by change of underlying liability is accounted as the termination of one hedge and 

acquisition of another.

  

  d)  Hedge contracts are not marked to market unless the underlying is also marked to market. In respect of hedge contracts 
that are marked to market, changes in the market value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

 
 B. In Transactions designated as ‘Trading’:

  

  Outstanding derivative transactions designated as ‘Trading’, which includes interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, cross 
currency options and credit default swaps, are measured at their fair value. The resulting profits/ losses are included in the 
profit and loss account. Premium on options is recorded as a balance sheet item and transferred to Profit and Loss Account on 
maturity/ cancellation.

  

  Derivative Transactions in Exchange Traded Currency Futures (ETCF’s) segments designated as trading includes Currency 
Futures, Currency Options and Interest Rate Futures which are measured at their fair value and are cash settled on T+1 basis. 
The resulting profits / losses on these transactions are transferred to Profit and Loss Account on the month end settlement date 
stipulated by Respective Exchanges.
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 C. Transactions in Futures and Options

  In case of IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited,

  i. 

   Initial Margin payable at the time of entering into futures contract / sale of options is adjusted against the deposits with 
the exchanges in the form of fixed deposits, cash deposits and securities.

  ii. 

   Transactions in Future contracts are accounted as Purchase and Sales at the notional trade value of the contract. The 
open interest in futures as at the Balance Sheet date is netted by its notional value. 

  iii. 

   The difference in the settlement price or exchange closing price of the previous day and exchange closing price of the 
subsequent day, paid to or received from the exchange is treated as Mark to Market Margin. The balance in the Mark 
to Market Margin Account represents the net amount paid or received on the basis of movement in the prices of open 
interest in futures contracts till the balance sheet date. Net debit balance in the Mark to Market Margin Account is charged 
off to revenue whereas net credit balance is shown under current liabilities.

  iv. 

   Premium paid or received on purchase and sale of options and the difference paid or received on exercise of options is 
accounted as Purchases or Sales. In case of open interest in options sold as on the balance sheet date, provision is made 
for the amount by which premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date exceeds the premium received for those options. 
The excess of premium received over the premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date is not recognized. Similarly, in 
case of options bought, provision is made for the amount by which the premium paid for the option exceeds the premium 
prevailing on the Balance Sheet date and the excess of premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date over the premium 
paid is ignored. In case of multiple open positions, provision is made or excess premiums are ignored after netting off the 
balances in buy as well as sell positions.

 
 D. Interest Rate Swaps

  

  In case of IDBI Capital Market Securities Limited, Assets and Liabilities in respect of notional principal amount of Interest Rate 
Swaps of the discontinued operations pertaining to Primary Dealership operations are netted. Gain or loss on Interest Rate 
Swaps is accounted for on due dates as per the terms of the contract.

8 Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

 
 A. In case of IDBI Bank Limited,

  i. 
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   Fixed assets other than Premises are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Premises are revalued in accordance 
with the Bank’s policy and RBI guidelines and the same are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation.

  ii. 

   Cost of asset includes purchase cost and all expenditure incurred on the asset before put to use. Subsequent expenditure 
incurred on assets which have been put to use is capitalized only when it increases the future benefits from such assets 
or their functioning capability.

  iii. 

   The appreciation on revaluation, if any, is credited to Revaluation Reserve.

  iv. 

   Depreciation in respect of fixed assets is calculated on Straight Line Method with reference to cost or revalued amounts, 
in case of assets revalued. 

  v. 

   In respect of revalued assets, the additional depreciation consequent to revaluation is transferred from revaluation reserve 
to general reserve in the balance sheet. 

  vi. `

   Fixed assets individually costing less than ` 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of addition.

  vii. 

   Depreciation on tangible assets is allocated over useful life of the asset as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the 
Companies Act 2013. The useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically. If the management estimate of the 
useful life of an asset at the time of acquisition of the asset or of remaining useful life on subsequent review is shorter, 
depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on the management’s estimate of useful life / remaining useful life.

  viii. 

   Depreciation on additions/ sale of fixed assets during the year is provided for the period for which assets are actually held.

  ix. The useful lives of Fixed assets are as follows:

Asset

Useful Life
(in Years) 

Owned Premises 60

Furniture and fixtures 10

Electrical installation and machinery 10

Motor vehicles 8

Computers 3

Automated Teller Machines 8

VSAT equipment 6
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Asset

Useful Life
(in Years) 

Consumer durables with employees 

a) Furniture and fixtures

10

b)  Personal Computers

3

  x. 

   Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

  xi. ` 

   Computer Software individually costing more than ` 2.50 Lacs is capitalised and depreciated over its useful life, not 
exceeding 6 years.

 
 B. In case of IDBI Assets Management Limited, 

  i. 

   Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes freight, 
duties, taxes, and incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the assets. Subsequent expenditure 
incurred on assets put to use is capitalized only when it increases the future benefit/functioning capability from/of such 
assets. All expenses on existing fixed assets, including repairs and maintenance and cost of replacement of parts are 
charged as revenue in the period in which they are incurred.

  ii. 

   Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM) as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The 
rates of depreciation of assets have been arrived at after considering the useful life of the asset as per schedule II of the 
Companies Act 2013. If the management’s estimate of the useful life of a fixed asset, at the time of acquisition of the 
asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review is shorter, depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on 
management’s estimates of the useful life/remaining useful life. Pursuant to this policy, depreciation has been provided 
using the following rates:

Class of Fixed Assets

Rate of Depreciation (In%)- SLM basis (applicable 
from April 01, 2015)

Furniture & Fixtures 9.50

Office Equipment 19.00

IT Hardware 33.33

Consumer durables with Employees

33.33
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  iii. `

` 

   Computer software individually costing more than ` 2.50 lakhs is capitalized and depreciated over a period of 5 years, 
Computer software individually costing less than ` 2.50 lakhs is fully depreciated in the year of purchase/acquisition.

  iv. 

   The Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the date the asset is put to use and for any asset sold until the date 
of sale.

 
 C. In case of IDBI Intech Limited, 

  i. 

   Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation / amortization and impairment loss, if any. 
Cost includes all expenses incurred for acquisition of assets to bring these to working conditions for intended use.

  ii. 

   The intangible assets like softwares, on which propriety rights continue with the company, are capitalized at costs. 
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as incurred unless 
technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Company 
has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the software, and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs 
which can be capitalized include the cost of material, direct man-power and overhead costs that are directly attributable 
to preparing the asset for its intended use.

  iii. 

   The cost of the fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date are shown as capital work-in 
progress.

 
 D. In case of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited 

  i. 

`
   Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition plus installation charges incurred in connection with the acquisition. 

Cost comprises of purchase price and attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended 
use. The depreciation is charged on Written down Value basis as prescribed in schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 
The depreciation on the addition of the asset is provided from the date of such addition and for disposals up to the date 
of such disposals. Individual low cost assets (acquired for less than ` 5,000/-) are depreciated in the year of acquisition.

  ii. 

   In accordance with Accounting Standards AS-26, Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization of intangible assets is provided on Written down Value method on the basis of estimated useful 
life of the asset. 



338   Towards a Better Tomorrow

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated 

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements

 
 E. In case of IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited, 

  i. 

   In case of Tangible Assets, Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation on items of property, plant and 
equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful 
lives as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act as follows:

   Buildings – 60 years

   Computers – 3 years

   Furniture& Fixtures – 10 years

   Office Equipment’s – 5 years

   `

   All Tangible Assets having individual value of less than ` 5,000, in the year of acquisition and assets retired from active 
use are fully depreciated.

  ii. 

   In case of Intangible Assets, Acquired computer software licences are initially capitalised at cost, which includes 
the purchase price (net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for 
its intended use. Direct expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its 
specifications and which can be reliably measured is added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated with 
maintaining the computer software are recognized as an expense when incurred.

   

   Expenditure on software development eligible for capitalisation are carried as Intangible assets under development where 
such assets are not yet ready for their intended use.

   

   Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of 
intangible assets used for amortization are:

   Computer Software -3 years

   Web Trading Portal – 3 years

   Bombay Stock Exchange Card – 21 years.

   

   Management estimates the economic value of Bombay Stock Exchange Trading Rights based on the value in use.

   `

   All Intangible Assets having individual value of less than ` 5,000, in the year of acquisition and assets retired from active 
use are fully depreciated.
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  iii. ` 

   Property, Plant and Equipment, individually costing ` 5000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase/
acquisition.

   

   The residual values and estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognized in profit or loss when the changes arise.

 
 F. In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited,

  I. 

   Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the purchase price and any cost directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. The Depreciation is provided using Straight 
Line Method (‘SLM’) prorated from the date of acquisition/up to the date of sale, based on estimated useful life for each 
class of asset in the manner specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, as stated below:

Asset Useful Life
(in Years)

Building 60

Leasehold improvements 3

Communication networks and servers

6

Computers and peripheral equipments

3

Office equipment 5

Furniture & fixtures 10

Motor Vehicles 8

Electrical Installations and Equipments

10

  II. 

   Intangible assets comprising software are stated at cost less amortization. These are amortized using Straight Line 
Method over a period of 3 years from the date of being put to use. Significant improvements to software are capitalized 
when it is probable that such improvement will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its 
originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. 
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Subsequent expenditures are amortized over the remaining useful life of the software. The expenses for support and 
maintenance of software are charged to Revenue Account in the period in which they are incurred.

 
 G. In case of IDBI Mutual Fund Trustee Company Limited,

  I. Owned Asset:

   

   Assets held for own uses are stated at original cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost of 
Property, plant and equipment comprises purchase price, duties, levies and any directly attributable costs of bringing the 
assets to its working condition of the intended use.

   

   Depreciable amount for asset is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual 
value.

   

   The estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment which is in line with schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 and 
the method of depreciation is set out herein below:

Assets Useful Life Method of 
Depreciation

Plant & Equipment’s 15 Years Straight Line Method

Furniture and Fittings 10 Years Straight Line Method

Electrical Equipment’s 10 Years Straight Line Method

Vehicles 8 Years Straight Line Method

Office Equipment’s 5 Years Straight Line Method

Computers 3 Years Straight Line Method

Mobile Phones 3 Years Straight Line Method

  II. Intangible Assets

   

   Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. An intangible 
asset is recognized, where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the 
enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured. The amortizable amount of intangible assets is allocated over the 
best estimate of its useful life on a straight-line basis.

9 Securitization Transactions:
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 Securitisation of various loans results in sale of these assets to Special Purpose Vehicles (‘SPVs’), which, in turn issue securities to 
investors. Financial assets are partially or wholly derecognised when the control over the contractual rights in the securitised assets is 
lost. The Bank accounts for any loss arising on sale immediately at the time of sale and the profit/ premium arising on account of sale 
is amortised over the life of the securities issued/ to be issued by the SPV to which the assets are sold.

10  
Sale of financial assets to Securitization Companies/Reconstruction Companies:

 

 Sale of financial assets to Securitisation Companies (SCs) / Reconstruction Companies (RCs) is reckoned at the lower of the redemption 
value of Security Receipts (SRs)/ Pass Through Certificates (PTCs) received and the net book value of the financial asset. 

 

 In case of sale of assets which are fully provided and Technically Written off, the Security Receipts (SRs) are reckoned at Rupee one in 
the investment book of the Bank.

 

 In case the sale value is at a price below the Net Book Value(NBV) (i.e., book value less provision held), the shortfall is be debited to 
the profit and loss account of that year. The Bank also uses, with permission of RBI, countercyclical/floating provisions for meeting any 
shortfall on sale of NPAs i.e. when the sale is at a price below the NBV.

 

 In case, sale value is higher than the NBV, the excess provision is reversed to the profit and loss account in the year in which cash 
amounts are received. However, such reversal of excess provision is limited to the extent to which cash received exceeds the NBV of 
the asset.

11  Foreign Currency Transactions:

 
 A. In case of IDBI Bank Limited,

  i. 

   Foreign currency transactions, on initial recognition are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 
Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates prescribed by Foreign Exchange 
Dealers Association of India (FEDAI) and the resultant gain or loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss account. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they 
arise.

  ii. 

   Premium or discount arising at the inception of Forward Exchange Contracts which are not intended for trading is 
amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. Premium or discount on other Forward Exchange Contracts 
is not recognized.
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  iii. 

   Outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts which are not intended for trading are revalued at closing FEDAI rates. Other 
outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts are valued at rates of exchange notified by FEDAI for specified maturities or at 
interpolated rates for in-between maturities. The resultant profits/ losses are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

  iv. 

   Profits/ losses arising on premature termination of Forward Exchange Contracts, together with unamortized premium or 
discount, if any, are recognized on the date of termination.

  v. 

   Contingent liabilities in respect of outstanding forward exchange contracts are calculated at the contracted rates of 
exchange and those in respect of guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other obligations are calculated at the 
closing FEDAI rates.

  vi. 

   Operations of foreign branch are classified as `Integral Foreign Operations’. Assets and Liabilities are translated at the 
closing rates prescribed by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI) Income and Expenditure items are 
translated at quarterly average rates. The resultant gain or loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 

 
 B. In case of IDBI Assets Management Limited, 

  

  Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transactions. Exchange 
difference, if any, arising out of the foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the statement of Profit 
and Loss.

 
 C. In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited, 

  

  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets 
and liabilities in foreign currency, if any, are translated at the year-end closing rates. The resultant exchange gain or loss arising 
on settlement/translation is recognized in the Revenue or Profit and Loss Account as applicable. 

 
 D. In case of IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited, 

  

  Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the year 
end, monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reported using the closing rate of exchange. Exchange difference 
arising thereon and on realization / payments of foreign exchange are accounted as income or expenses in the relevant  
year.
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 E. In case of IDBI Intech Limited, 

  

  Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the original rate of exchange in force at the time transactions are effected. 
Exchange differences arising on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the Balance Sheet 
and the resulting net exchange difference is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  

  With a view to minimize the volatility arising from fluctuations in currency rates, the Company enters into foreign exchange 
forward contracts. Forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments that are not in respect of forecasted transactions 
are accounted for using the guidance in Accounting Standard (‘AS’) 11, ‘The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’. 
For such forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments covered by AS-11, based on the nature and purpose of 
the contract, either the contracts are recorded based on the forward rate/fair value at the reporting date, or based on the spot 
exchange rate on the reporting date.

 
 F. In case of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited, 
  

  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the books by applying the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. All monetary items denominated in foreign currency assets and liabilities are restated at the exchange rate prevailing 
at the year end. Any income or expense on account of the exchange difference either on settlement or on transaction is 
recognized in the profit & loss account.

12 Employee Benefits:

 i. 

  Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged to Profit and Loss Account of the year when contribution are due.

 ii. 

  For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial 
valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in the profit and loss account 
for the period in which they occur. 

 iii. 

  The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by 
employees is recognized during the period when the employee renders the service.

13  Segment Reporting:

 

 The Group operates in four segments wholesale banking, retail banking, treasury services and other operations. These segments have 
been identified in line with AS-17 on segment reporting after considering the nature and risk profile of the products and services, the 
target customer profile, the organization structure and the internal reporting system of the Bank.
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 Segment revenue, results, assets, and liabilities include the amounts identifiable to each of the segments as also amounts allocated, as 
estimated by the management. Assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to identifiable segments are grouped under unallocated 
assets and liabilities.

14 Taxation:

 Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

 i. 

  Current tax is the amount of Income tax determined to be payable (recoverable) in respect of taxable income (tax loss) for a 
period calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure 
Standards (ICDS).

 ii. 

  Deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for, using the tax rates and laws 
that have been substantively enacted as of the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising from timing differences are 
recognized to the extent there is reasonable certainty that these would be realized in future.

 iii. 

  Deferred tax assets in case of unabsorbed depreciation/ losses are recognized only if there is virtual certainty that such deferred 
tax asset can be realized against future taxable profits.

 iv. 

  Disputed taxes not provided for including departmental appeals are included under Contingent Liabilities.

 v. 

  IDBI Bank has opted for the lower tax rate as per Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 through Taxation Laws 
(Amendments) Act, 2019 which provides, inter alia, that MAT would not be applicable for the domestic companies opting for the 
lower tax.

 vi. 

  In respect of certain subsidiaries, tax credit is recognized in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) as per the provisions of 
Section 115JAA of the Income tax Act, 1961 based on convincing evidence that the it will pay normal income tax within the 
statutory time frame and is reviewed at each balance sheet date.

 vii. 

  In the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed at an individual entity level and 
aggregated for consolidated reporting.

15 Brokerage &New Fund Offer expenses:

 In case of IDBI Asset Management Limited
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 Brokerage: Upfront Brokerage paid in case of open ended Equity Linked Tax Saving schemes are to be amortized over the period of 36 
months and in case of any other open ended scheme , over the claw back period. In case of closed ended schemes upfront brokerage 
to be amortized over the tenure of the scheme.

 

 New Fund Offer (NFO): Launch expenses relating to New Fund Offer are to be charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year 
in which they are incurred and for close ended scheme it is to be charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the 
scheme

16 LEASES (AS-19) :

 
 a) The properties taken on lease/ rental basis are renewable/ cancellable at the option of the Bank

 

 b) The lease entered into by the Bank are for agreed period with an option to terminate the leases even during the tenure of lease 
period by giving mutually agreed calendar month notice in writing.

  
 c) Lease rent paid for operating leases are recognised as an expense in the Profit & Loss account in the year to which it  

relates.

17 Earnings Per Share:

 i. 

  The Group reports basic and diluted Earnings per Share in accordance with AS 20. Basic Earnings per Share is computed by 
dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

 ii. 

  Diluted Earnings per Share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity 
shares were exercised or converted during the period. Diluted Earnings per Share is computed by dividing the net profit 
after tax by the sum of the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at the  
year end.

18 Impairment of Assets:

 

 Fixed Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances warrant that the carrying amount of an asset 
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset 
to the estimated current realizable value and value in use. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized 
is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds estimated current realizable value of the asset or value 
in use.
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19 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

 i. 

  In conformity with AS 29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the Bank recognizes provisions only when it 
has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

 ii. 

  Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at 
the balance sheet date.

 iii. 

  Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognized only when it is virtually certain that 
the reimbursement will be received.

 iv. 

  Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.

20 Scheme related expenses:

 

 In case of IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited, Expenses of the scheme of IDBI Mutual Fund in excess of the limits prescribed by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Fund) Regulations Act 1996 can be borne by the Company. However, during the 
period under review no such expenses are charged to profit and loss account. IDBI Asset Management Limited has apportioned a part 
of the Secretarial and other charges attributable to the IDBI MF trustee company Limited on a reasonable and equitable basis and such 
expenses are charged to the Profit and Loss account.

21 Others: 

 In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited,

 i) Acquisition Costs: 

  

  Acquisition costs are costs that vary with and are primarily related to acquisition of insurance contracts and are expensed in the 
period in which they are incurred. 

 ii) Benefits Paid:
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  Death, rider, withdrawals and surrender claims are accounted for on receipt of intimation. Survival benefit claims and maturity 
claims are accounted when due. Withdrawals and Surrenders under linked policies are accounted in the respective schemes 
when the associated units are cancelled. Reinsurance recoveries on claims are accounted for, in the same period as the related 
claims.

 iii) Actuarial liability valuation: 

  

  Actuarial liability for life policies in force and for policies in respect of which premium has been discontinued but a liability exists, 
is determined by the Appointed Actuary using the gross premium method, in accordance with accepted actuarial practice, 
requirements of Insurance Act, 1938, as amended by the Insurance Law (Amendment) Act, 2015, IRDA regulations & circulars 
issued from time to time and the Actuarial Practice Standards of the Institute of Actuaries of India. Liabilities under unit linked 
policies are the sum of the value of units and the prospective non unit reserve in respect of mortality and morbidity risks and 
future policy expenses, less policy charges.

 iv) Reinsurance premium:

  

  Cost of reinsurance ceded is accounted for at the time of recognition of premium income in accordance with the treaty or in-
principle arrangement with the reinsurer. 

 v) Funds for Future Appropriations

  

  The funds for future appropriations, in the participating segment, represent the surplus, which is not allocated to policyholders 
or shareholders as at the Balance Sheet date. Any allocation to the participating policyholders would also give rise to a transfer 
to Shareholders’ Profit and Loss Account in the required proportion.

 vi) Goods and Services Tax (erstwhile ‘Service tax’)

  

  Goods and Services Tax liability on life insurance service is set-off against the input tax credits (‘ITC’) available from tax paid on 
input of goods or services. Unutilized credits, if any, are carried forward for set-off.

 vi) Loans 

  

  Loans against policies are stated at historical cost, subject to provision for impairment, if any.

 viii) Allocation methodology

  

  Revenues and expenses, assets and liabilities which are directly attributable and identifiable to the respective segments, are 
directly allocated for in that respective segment. Operating expenses relating to insurance business are allocated to specific 
business segments in the following manner, which is applied on consistent basis.

  a) Expenses that are directly identifiable to the segment are allocated on actual basis
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  b) Other expenses (including depreciation and amortization), that are not directly identifiable to a business segment, are 
allocated on either of the following bases:

Number of policies/certificate of insurance issued

Annual Premium Equivalent

New Business Commission

Death Sum Assured

Mathematical Reserves

Number of policies in force

Renewal Premium income

  

  The method of allocation and apportionment has been decided based on the nature of the expense and its logical co-relation 
with various business segments. The allocation and apportionment of expenses amongst various business segments is in 
accordance with Board approved policy.
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SCHEDULE 18 - NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

1. 
 NET PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD, PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS AND CHANGES IN 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (AS-5)
 
 No change in Accounting Policy for the financial year 2020-21.

2. 
 FIXED ASSETS  (PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS AS-10)
 i. 

`
  As at the end of the FY 2018-19, the Bank had re-valued its Premises including leasehold / Freehold Lands & Residential/ Office 

buildings based on valuations made by independent valuers. Post revaluation, the net block of premises stands at ` 7,145.28 
Crore as on 1st April, 2019.

 ii. ` `
  The balance in Revaluation Reserve as at March 31, 2021 is ` 6,281.45 Crore (` 6,503.37 Crore for previous year).

 iii. ` `  

  Loss amounting to ` 0.42 Crores (Previous Year: ` 4.76 Crores) on account of sale of residential/office buildings during the year 
is included in Schedule 14 - Other Income.

3. 
 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (AS-15) (Revised)

 
A. Employee Benefit Schemes

  i.  Defined Contribution Schemes

  
  a)  The amount recognized and included for Contribution to Provident Fund in Profit and Loss Account in FY 20-21

                                                                                 `  / (` in Crore)

Entity FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

IDBI Bank Ltd 5.55 5.96

Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Ltd.

1.22 2.51

IDBI Asset Management Limited

0.50 0.60

IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited

0.87 0.96

IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd.

0.21 0.22

IDBI Intech Limited

4.19 3.95
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  b) In case of IDBI Bank Limited, the Bank’s employees, excluding those who have opted for pension, who have joined 
Bank before March 31, 2008 are covered by Provident Fund Scheme (PFS). The Bank makes a defined contribution 
measured as a fixed percentage of basic salary to the PFS. The Provident Fund Scheme is managed by “The Board of 
Trustees of IDBI Bank Employees’ Provident Fund Trust (Trust)”. In respect of employees of erstwhile IDBI Home Finance 
Limited (IHFL) and erstwhile IDBI Gilts Limited (IGL), provident fund contributions were made to Regional Provident Fund 
Commissioner up to May 2011 and thereafter contributions have been made to the aforementioned Fund.

`
` 

  c) The Bank’s employees who have joined after April 1, 2008 are covered by IDBI Bank Ltd. New Pension Scheme (IBLNPS) 
to which Bank makes a defined contribution as a fixed percentage of Pay and Dearness Allowance. During the year, 
`  100.24 Crore (` 90.99 Crore) has been contributed to IBLNPS and charged to Profit and Loss Account.

` ` 

  d) In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Ltd, the amount recognized  of ` 1.22 Crore for the year ended March 
31, 2021  (` 2.51 Crore) includes contribution towards Statutory Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Group Term 
Insurance & Employee Labour Welfare Fund in the Profit and Loss Account.

  

` ` 
  e) In case of IDBI Intech Ltd, both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan 

equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. In case of Company’s employees enrolled with the 
Employees Provident Fund Organization (EPFO) having Universal Account Number (UAN), the Government of India has 
paid the full employer’s contribution to both EPF and EPS in respect of new employees under the guidelines of Pradhan 
Mantri Rojgar Yojana (PMRPY). For the remaining employees and the entire contribution in respect of all employees is 
contributed to the Government administered Employee Provident and Pension Fund. The interest rate payable to the 
beneficiaries every year is being notified by the Government. During the year, the Company has availed the benefit of 
PMRPY for ` 0.11 Crore (` 0.16 Crore).

  
  ii. Defined Benefit Schemes

  a) The Bank makes contributions for the gratuity liability of the employees to the ‘IDBI Bank Employees Gratuity Fund Trust’.

   i 
    Some of the employees of the Bank are also eligible for Pension which is administered by the ‘IDBI Pension Fund 

Trust’. 

   ii. 

    The present value of these defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost are measured using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date.

`
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  b) In case of IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Ltd., the group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who 
has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each 
completed year of service subject to a maximum of ` 20,00,000.

  

  c) In case of IDBI Asset Management Ltd., In accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the group provides for 
gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee’s salary and the years of 
employment with the Company. The gratuity benefit is provided through a Gratuity Fund administrated and managed by 
the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The annual contributions to the gratuity fund and provision is made on the basis 
of actuarial valuation.

  

  d) In case of IDBI Intech Ltd., the group makes annual contribution to the Employee’s Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme, 
administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC), a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. 
The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on 
termination of employment based on completed years of service or part thereof in excess of six months. Vesting occurs 
on completion of five years of continuous service.

  

  e) In case of IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd., The group has created a separate Trust for Gratuity obligations. The application 
filed for approval of the Gratuity Trust with the Income Tax Dept. is pending. The Trust has taken Group Gratuity Policy 
from LIC and the annual contributions determined by LIC on actuarial basis are paid and charged to Statement of Profit 
& Loss. The accumulations with LIC at year end represent Plan Assets and Funded Part of Gratuity Obligations of the 
Company.

  f) On account of LIC assuming lower rates of salary escalations (4%) and withdrawal (1 to 3%) in actuarial computations, 
the Company has obtained, from Independent Government Approved Actuary Valuer, a certificate for valuation of 
present value of future obligation of past and current service on more realistic assumptions. The difference between 
fund accumulation in LIC Scheme and amount determined at year end obligations by Independent Valuer (representing 
Non-Funded Part of Gratuity Obligation) is recognized and presented as liability in accounts by appropriate charge to 
Statement of Profit & Loss.

  

  g) In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Ltd., The group has incorporated a gratuity trust. The Company makes 
contribution to a Gratuity Fund administered by trustee of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited Gratuity Fund. 
The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirements or termination of employment based on the 
respective employee’s salary and the year of employment with the Company.

  

  h) The Gratuity is payable on separation as per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 @ 15 days basic pay for 
each completed years of service to eligible employees who have rendered continuous service of 6 months or more.
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  i) Gratuity benefits to employees are provided for through an insurance policy and investments managed by the Trust. 
The insurance policy is issued by the Company and the premium paid by the Company in respect of such policy has 
been accounted as an expense. The liability in respect thereof (funded portion) forms part of life fund and corresponding 
investment as part of policyholder’s investments. 

  
`  

`  -
  j) Liability for compensated absence in respect of accumulated sick leave for employees is determined based on actuarial 

valuation. During the year amount of ` 0.01 Crore (` -0.05 Crore) has been charged to Revenue or Profit and Loss 
Account towards provision for the said benefits based on actuarial valuation.

 

 B. The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit schemes and the amounts 
recognized in the Group’s financial statements as at March 31, 2021 which is as per AS-15 
(Revised).

                                                                                                                       

`  / (` in Crore)

Sr 
No

Particulars Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

As at  March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

a) Projected benefit obligation, beginning of 
the year 

2,993.01 944.26 2,343.28 800.32

 Interest cost 203.23 64.97 182.31 62.11

 

Current Service cost  

36.46 42.41 37.68 37.84

 

Past Service cost (Vested Benefit) incurred 
during the year due to increase in limit

- - - -

 

Liability Transferred In/ (Out)

- - - -

 Benefits paid (168.18) (67.97) (216.01) (81.10)

 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 

207.68 (43.91) - 1.48

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - 
Due to Change in Financial Assumptions

(66.50) (1.06) 294.85 69.80
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`  / (` in Crore)

Sr 
No

Particulars Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

As at  March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - 
Due to Experience

(15.23) 13.30 350.90 56.24

  
Projected benefit/ obligation, end of the 
year

3,190.47 952.00 2,993.01 946.68

 
b) Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the 
year 

2,698.21 891.84 2,435.91 719.99

 

Expected return on plan assets

183.21 61.40 189.51 56.01

Employer’s contributions

337.66 132.00 274.68 194.18

 

Transfer from other Company

- - - -

 Benefits paid (168.18) (67.97) (216.01) (81.10)

 

Actuarial gain / (loss) 

41.11 (0.18) 14.12 4.53

 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
year 

3,092.01 1,017.09 2,698.21 893.61

 
c)

Reconciliation of present value of the 
obligation and fair value of the plan 
assets

 

Present value of benefit obligation at  the 
end of the year

3,190.47 949.49 2,993.01 946.69

 

Transitional (Liability) to be  recognized/
provided in future

- - - -

Net Present value of benefit obligation at  
the end of the year

3,190.47 949.49 2,993.01 946.69
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`  / (` in Crore)

Sr 
No

Particulars Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

As at  March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

 

Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the 
year

3,092.01 1,015.60 2,698.21 893.61

 

Surplus/ (Deficit)

(98.46) 66.11 (294.80) (53.08)

d) Net cost for the year 

 Service cost  36.46 42.41 37.68 37.84

 Interest cost 203.23 64.46 182.31 62.11

Expected return on plan assets

(183.21) (60.89) (189.51) (55.74)

 

Net Actuarial (gain)/ loss 

84.84 (31.49) 631.63 123.00

 

Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) 
recognized during the year due to increase 
in limit

- - - -

 

Transitional liability recognized during the 
year

- - - -

 

Net  cost as per above

141.32 14.49 662.11 167.21

 

Excess of fund value over actuarial liability 
not written back

- - - -

Excess of fund value over actuarial liability of 
previous year adjusted in current year

- - (92.63) -

Increase in Gratuity Fund Value due to 
increase in rate of interest offered by LIC on 
investments adjusted in current year

- - - -

Net cost of the year

141.32 14.49 569.48 167.21
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`  / (` in Crore)

Sr 
No

Particulars Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

As at  March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

e) Category of Assets 

Government of India  Assets

- - - -

State Government Securities

195.84 0.26 196.21 0.59

 

Corporate Bonds

976.02 - 861.74 0.19

Special Deposits Scheme

39.62 - - -

 

Insurer Managed Funds

1,736.72 1,015.76 1,509.00 889.05

Others 143.81 0.04 131.26 2.91

 Total 3,092.01 1,016.06 2,698.21 892.75

f) Assumptions used in accounting: 

 

Discount rate 

6.97%

From 5.45 % 
to 6.96%

6.79%

From 5.45 % 
to 7.00%

 

Rate of return on plan assets 

6.97%

From 5.00% 
to 6.96%

6.79%

From 0.07% to 
7.10%

 

Salary escalation rate 

5.75%

From 5 % to 
12%

5.75%

From 5 % to 
12%

Attrition  Rate

3.60%  for 
service less 
than 5 years 
and 2.49% 
thereafter

3.60%  for 
service less 
than 5 years 
and 2.49% 
thereafter

3.08% for 
service less 
than 5 years 
and 3.50% 
thereafter

1.90 % for 
service less 

than 5 Years 
and 2.57 % for 

service more 
than 4 Years
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`  / (` in Crore)

Sr 
No

Particulars Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

As at  March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

Mortality Rate

Indian 
Assured Lives 
Mortality 
(2006-08) 
Ult  - During 
employment

Indian 
Individual 
Annuitant’s 
Mortality Table 
(2012-
15)- After 
employment

Indian 
Assured Lives 
Mortality 
(2006-08) Ult.

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2006-2008) Ult.

  Experience Adjustments

  (i) Gratuity Plan
`  / (` in Crore)

Particulars March 31, 
2021

March 31, 
2020

March 31, 
2019

March 31, 
2018

March 31, 
2017

Defined benefit obligation

950.75 945.57 799.34 720.85 653.17

 / Plan assets 1,016.34 892.91 719.39 651.64 572.68

Surplus/(deficit) 65.60 (52.66) (79.95) (69.21) (80.49)

Experience adjustments on plan 
liabilities [Gain / (Loss)]

(13.56) (54.52) (44.44) (15.55) 10.63

Experience adjustments On plan 
assets [Gain / (Loss)]

(0.18) 4.55 (0.12) 8.67 3.27
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  (ii) Pension Plan

`  / (` in Crore)

Particulars March 31, 
2021

March 31, 
2020

March 31, 
2019

March 31, 
2018

March 31, 
2017

Defined benefit obligation

3,190.47 2,993.01 2,343.28 2,111.79 2,059.32

 / Plan assets 3,092.01 2,698.21 2,435.91 2,289.98 2,257.56

Surplus/(deficit) (98.46) (294.8) 92.63 178.19 198.24

Experience adjustments
On plan liabilities [Gain / (Loss)]

15.23 (350.9) (180.22) (42.72) (76.87)

Experience adjustments on plan 
assets [Gain / (Loss)]

41.11 14.12 57.23 (38.82) 98.10

 

 C. Other long term benefits

  
  a. Present value of Leave Encashment obligation at the End of the period          

      `  / (` in Crore)

Entity FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

IDBI Bank Limited

545.30 525.22

Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited

1.02 1.71

IDBI Asset Management Limited

0.59 0.44

IDBI Intech Limited

2.14 2.22

IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited

3.93 3.29

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

0.76 0.52
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  b. Leave Encashment charged to Profit and Loss Account in FY 20-21

      `  / (` in Crore)

Entity FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

IDBI Bank Ltd

166.25 134.62

Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Ltd.

0.52 1.07

IDBI Asset Management Limited

0.21 0.14

IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited

0.86 0.75

IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd. 0.26 0.20

IDBI Intech Limited 1.48 0

  

  c. In case of IDBI Bank Ltd., employees of the Bank are entitled to accumulate their earned/ privilege leave up to a maximum 
of 240 days for officers and 300 days for other staff. A maximum of 15 days leave is eligible for encashment in each year. 

  
  d. Some employees of the Bank are eligible for Voluntary Health Scheme which is borne by the Bank as and when the 

liability events occur.

  

  e. Employees of the Bank are eligible for Disability Assistance which is borne by the Bank as and when the disability events 
occur.

  

  f. In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Ltd, The employees of the Company are entitled to accumulate their 
earned / privilege leave up to a maximum of 30 days which is payable / encashable as per the policy on their separation. 

4. SEGMENT REPORTING (AS-17)

 The Bank primarily operates in four business segments as under:

Treasury

Treasury operations include trading portfolio of investments, money market operations, 
derivative trading, foreign exchange operations on the proprietary account and for customers.

Retail Banking

Retail Banking broadly includes credit and deposit activities that are primarily oriented 
towards individuals & small business including Priority Sector lending.  Retail Banking also 
encompasses payment and alternate channels like ATMs, POS machines, Internet Banking, 
Mobile Banking, Credit Cards, Debit Cards, Travel/Currency cards, Third party distribution and 
Transaction Banking Services.
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Corporate/ Wholesale Banking

Includes corporate relationship covering deposit & credit activities other than retail.  It also 
covers corporate advisory / syndication, project appraisal and investment portfolio including 
strategic investments other than those covered under Treasury.

Other Banking/Group Operations Includes operations/activities of group companies other than Bank.

  

`  / (` in Crore)

Sr. 
No

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

a. Segment Revenue

  

 Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 10,217  12,000

 Retail Banking 27,103 28,906

 Treasury 356 754

Other Banking Operations 275 284

 TOTAL 37,951 41,942

 Less :- Inter-segment revenue 13,147 16,457

 

Net sales / income from operations

24,804 25,485

b. Segment Results -Profit/(loss) before tax

 Corporate/ Wholesale Banking (605) (11,329)

 Retail Banking 2,676 1,767

 Treasury 347 575

Other Banking Operations 132 103

 TOTAL 2,550 (8,884)

 

Less: Other unallocable expenditure net of unallocable income

- -

 Total profit/ (loss) before tax 2,550 (8,884)

 Income taxes 1,036 3,951

 Net profit/ (loss) 1,514 (12,835)
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`  / (` in Crore)

Sr. 
No

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

c. Segment assets

 Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 93,382 1,06,263

 Retail Banking 1,82,584 1,71,633

 Treasury 835 175

Other Banking Operations 863 854

 Unallocated assets 20,989 21,774

 Total assets 2,98,653 3,00,699

d.
Segment liabilities

 Corporate/Wholesale Banking 27,719 53,233

 Retail Banking 2,38,355 2,17,844

 Treasury 945 1,099

Other Banking Operations 297 191

 Unallocated liabilities - -

 Total liabilities 2,67,316 2,72,367

e. Capital employed 
(Segment assets-Segment liabilities)

 

Corporate/ Wholesale Banking

65,662 53,030

 Retail Banking (55,770) (46,210)

 Treasury (110) (924)

Other Banking Operations 566 663

 Unallocated 20,989 21,774

 TOTAL 31,337 28,332

   The segment revenue includes inter-segment revenue computed as per Fund Transfer Pricing system followed by the 
Bank.

   The group primarily operates in India, hence the group has considered that its operations are predominantly in the 
domestic segment and as such there are no reportable geographical segments.
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5.	 ¬¸¿¤¸Ö œ¸®¸ˆÅ¸£ ˆÅ¸ œÏˆÅ’›¸ (‡‡¬¸-18)
	 RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURE (AS-18)

	 i.	 Ÿ¸º‰¡¸ œÏ¤¸¿š¸ˆÅú¡¸ ˆÅ¸¢Ÿ¸ÄˆÅ¸Ê ˆ½Å ¤¡¸¸½£½ / Details of Key Management Personnel

ÇÅ. 
¬¸¿. 
S. 
No.

¬¸¿¬˜¸¸ ˆÅ¸ ›¸¸Ÿ¸  
Name of Entity

¬¸¿¤¸¿š¸ 
Relationship

1. ªú £¸ˆ½Å©¸ ©¸Ÿ¸¸Ä  
Shri Rakesh Sharma

œÏ¤¸¿š¸ ¢›¸™½©¸ˆÅ ‡¨¸¿ ¬¸úƒÄ‚¸½ 
Managing Director & CEO

2. ªú ¬¸¾Ÿ¡¸º‚¥¸ �¸¸½¬¸½ûÅ �¸½¤¸£¸�¸ 
Shri Samuel Joseph Jebaraj

„œ¸ œÏ¤¸¿š¸ ¢›¸™½©¸ˆÅ (20 ¢¬¸÷¸¿¤¸£ 2019 ¬¸½)
Deputy Managing Director (From September 20, 2019)

3. ªú ¬¸º£½©¸ ‰¸’›¸í¸£ 
Shri Suresh Khatanhar

„œ¸ œÏ¤¸¿š¸ ¢›¸™½©¸ˆÅ (15 �¸›¸¨¸£ú 2020 ¬¸½)
Deputy Managing Director (From January 15, 2020)

4. ªú ‚�¸¡¸ ©¸Ÿ¸¸Ä  
Shri Ajay Sharma

ˆÅ¸¡¸Äœ¸¸¥¸ˆÅ ¢›¸™½©¸ˆÅ ‡¨¸¿ Ÿ¸º‰¡¸ ¢¨¸î¸ú¡¸ ‚¢š¸ˆÅ¸£ú.
Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer

5. ªú œ¸¨¸›¸ ‚ŠÏ¨¸¸¥¸ 
Shri Pawan Agrawal

ˆ¿Åœ¸›¸ú ¬¸¢�¸¨¸ (15 ‚œÏ¾¥¸, 2021 ÷¸ˆÅ)
Company Secretary (upto April 15, 2021)

6. ¬¸ºªú �¡¸¸½¢÷¸ ›¸¸¡¸£
Ms. Jyoti Nair

ˆ¿Åœ¸›¸ú ¬¸¢�¸¨¸ (16 ‚œÏ¾¥¸ 2021 ¬¸½)
Company Secretary (w.e.f. April 16, 2021)

	 ii.	 ¨¸«¸Ä ˆ½Å ™¸¾£¸›¸ ¢�¸›¸ œ¸®¸ˆÅ¸£¸Ê ¬¸½ ¥¸½›¸™½›¸ ¢ˆÅ‡ Š¸‡ 
		  Parties with whom transactions were entered into during the year

		  ¥¸½‰¸¸ Ÿ¸¸›¸ˆÅ 18 ˆ½Å œ¸¾£¸ 5 ˆ½Å ‚›¸º¬¸¸£, ¤¸ÿˆÅ£-ŠÏ¸íˆÅ ¬¸¿¤¸¿š¸ ˆ½Å ¬¨¸³Åœ¸ Ÿ¸Ê ¥¸½›¸™½›¸¸Ê Ÿ¸Ê Ÿ¸º‰¡¸ œÏ¤¸¿š¸ˆÅú¡¸ ˆÅ¸¢Ÿ¸ÄˆÅ ‚¸¾£ Ÿ¸º‰¡¸ œÏ¤¸¿š¸ˆÅú¡¸ ˆÅ¸¢Ÿ¸ÄˆÅ ˆ½Å ¬¸¿¤¸¿¢š¸¡¸¸Ê ˆÅ¸ œÏˆÅ’›¸ 
›¸íú¿ ¢ˆÅ¡¸¸ Š¸¡¸¸ í¾. 

		  In terms of paragraph 5 of AS 18, transactions in the nature of Banker-Customer relationship have not been disclosed in respect 
of Key Management Personnel and relatives of Key Management Personnel.

	 iii.	 ¨¸«¸Ä ˆ½Å ™¸¾£¸›¸ Ÿ¸º‰¡¸ œÏ¤¸¿š¸ˆÅú¡¸ ˆÅ¸¢Ÿ¸ÄˆÅ¸Ê ˆÅ¸½ œÏ™÷¸ œ¸¸¢£ª¢Ÿ¸ˆÅ 
		  Remuneration Paid To Key Management Personnel During The Year 
							       				     (` ˆÅ£¸½”õ Ÿ¸Ê) / (` in Crore)

Ÿ¸º‰¡¸ œÏ¤¸¿š¸ˆÅú¡¸ ˆÅ¸¢Ÿ¸ÄˆÅ 
Key Management Personnel

¢¨¸î¸ú¡¸ ¨¸«¸Ä 2020-21 
FY 2020-21

¢¨¸î¸ú¡¸ ¨¸«¸Ä 2019-20 
FY 2019-20

ªú £¸ˆ½Å©¸ ©¸Ÿ¸¸Ä / Shri Rakesh Sharma 0.36 0.37

ªú ¬¸¾Ÿ¡¸º‚¥¸ �¸¸½¬¸½ûÅ �¸½¤¸£¸�¸ / Shri Samuel Joseph Jebaraj 0.32 0.18

ªú ¬¸º£½©¸ ‰¸’›¸í¸£ / Shri Suresh Khatanhar 0.31 0.07

ªú ‚�¸¡¸ ©¸Ÿ¸¸Ä  / Shri Ajay Sharma 0.37 0.40

ªú œ¸¨¸›¸ ‚ŠÏ¨¸¸¥¸  / Shri Pawan Agrawal 0.36 0.40

ªú ˆ½Å.œ¸ú.›¸¸¡¸£ / Shri K.P. Nair - 0.27

ªú �¸ú.‡Ÿ¸.¡¸¸™¨¸¸”ˆÅ£ / Shri G.M.Yadwadkar - 0.28

ˆºÅ¥¸  / Total 1.73 1.97
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6. LEASES (AS-19)

 
 a) The properties taken on lease/ rental basis are renewable/ cancellable at the option of the Bank.

 

 b) The lease entered into by the Bank are for agreed period with an option to terminate the leases even  during the tenure of lease 
period by giving mutually agreed calendar month notice in writing.

 

` `
 c) Lease rent paid for operating leases are recognised as an expense in the Profit & Loss Account in the year to which it relates. 

The lease rent recognised during the year is ` 375.47 Crore (` 347.72 Crore). 

  

 d) The future minimum lease payments for subsidiaries/JV in respect of non-cancellable operating leases as at Balance Sheet date 

are summarized as under: 
`  / (` in Crore)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Not Later than One year 0.56 1.28

Later than one year but not later than five years

- 0.63

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) (AS-20)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

`
Net Profit (Loss) considered for EPS calculation (` in Crore)

1,513.97 (12835.24)

Weighted average number of equity shares considered for Basic EPS

1048,55,15,210 889,94,97,497

Weighted average number of equity shares considered for Diluted EPS 1048,55,15,210 889,94,97,497

` EPS (Basic) (`) 1.44 (14.42)

` EPS(Diluted) (`) 1.44 (14.42)

` Face Value per Equity share (`) 10.00 10.00
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8. ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME (AS-22)

 

 The component of Deferred Tax Asset & Deferred Tax Liability arising out of timing difference is as follows:

 `  / (` in Crore)

Particulars As At
March 2021 For the year ended  

March 31, 2021

As At
March 2020

Deferred Tax Asset

Depreciation on fixed assets 0.20 0.10 0.10

Disallowance related to provision for NPA and for other 
provisions not allowed under Income Tax Act, 1961

8,755.23 (1,879.41) 10,634.64

Provision for Doubtful advances

3.86 (1.90) 5.76

Disallowance u/s. 43B, 40(a)(ia) etc. of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961

190.32 29.72 160.60

Gratuity/Pension 0.27 0.08 0.20

Leave Encashment 1.09 0.56 0.52

Business Loss 5,648.35 491.37 5,156.98

Unabsorbed depreciation 159.89 42.81 117.08

TOTAL (A) 14,759.21 (1,316.67) 16,075.88

Deferred Tax Liability    

Depreciation on fixed assets

2.54 (6.09) 8.63

Special Reserve created and maintained u/s 36(1)(viii) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961

307.71 - 307.71

Provision for Doubtful advances

0.07 0.07 -

TOTAL (B) 310.32 6.02 316.34

Deferred Tax Asset /(Liability) (Net) 

(A) – (B) 14,448.90 (1,310.65) 15,759.55



364   Towards a Better Tomorrow

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated 

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements

9. Provision for Taxation
            `  / (` in Crore)

Particulars

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Income Tax 24.94* 21.67

 `

 * In case of IDBI Bank, the excess provision for FY 1998, FY 1999 & FY 2000 aggregating to ` 299.52 Crores was written back during 
the year on account of Income tax refund. 

10. 

 Summarized financial information of Subsidiary Companies, Associate Companies & 
Jointly Controlled Entity as per requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 as at March 31, 
2021 are as under:

`  / (` in Crore)

Name of the Entity

Net Assets i.e. total assets 
minus total liabilities

Share on profit or loss

As % of 
Consolidated 

Net Assets

Amount

As % of 
Consolidated 
Profit or Loss

Amount

Parent : IDBI Bank Ltd.

97.54% 3,6811.07 89.79% 1,359.46

Subsidiaries

Indian :

1.  

 IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Ltd.

0.83% 312.76 0.50% 7.51

2.  IDBI Intech Ltd. 0.24% 90.06 0.80% 12.07

3.  

 IDBI Asset Management Ltd.

0.30% 113.38 0.30% 4.53

4.  

 IDBI MF Trustee Co. Ltd.

0.00% 1.61 0.00% 0.03

5.  

 IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd.

0.66% 249.41 2.65% 40.09

Foreign :
NA NA NA NA
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`  / (` in Crore)

Name of the Entity

Net Assets i.e. total assets 
minus total liabilities

Share on profit or loss

As % of 
Consolidated 

Net Assets

Amount

As % of 
Consolidated 
Profit or Loss

Amount

Minority Interest in all Subsidiaries

0.30% 112.98 1.20% 18.16

#

Associates (Investment as per the equity method) #

Indian
1.  

 Biotech Consortium India Limited NA NA

0.00% 0.00

2.  

 National Securities Depository Ltd. NA NA

5.51% 83.46

3.  

 North Eastern Development Finance Corporation 
Ltd.

NA NA

0.00% 0.00

4.  

 Pondicherry Industrial Promotion Development & 
Investment Corporation Ltd. ( PIPDICL)

NA NA NA NA

Foreign :
NA NA NA NA

Joint Ventures

(as per proportionate consolidation/investment as per the 
equity method)

Indian
1.  

 Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Ltd.

0.69% 259.65 2.19% 33.22

Foreign
NA NA NA NA

TOTAL 100.56% 37,950.91 100.54% 1,522.22

Elimination (0.56%) (209.89) (0.54%) (8.25)

Net Total 100.00% 37,741.02 100.00% 1,513.97

  
 Note: None of the above subsidiaries have any subsidiary.

 

 # The Financials of Four Associates Viz., National Securities Depository Limited (26.10%), North Eastern Development Finance 
Corporation Limited (25%), Biotech Consortium India Limited (27.93%) And Pondicherry Industrial Promotion Development and 
Investment Corporation Limited (21.14%) are not considered for Consolidation on account of non-receipt of Financial Statements for 
Q4 of FY 2021, impact of which on the Consolidated Financial Statements is not material. In Case of Pondicherry Industrial Promotion 
Development and Investment Corporation Limited, the investment in the said company has been written down to Re 1.



366   Towards a Better Tomorrow

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated 

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements

11. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS (AS-24 ) 

 

 During the period from 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021, the bank has not discontinued operations of any of its branches, which resulted in 
shedding of liability and realisation of the assets and no decision has been finalised to discontinue an operation in its entirety which will 
have the above effect. 

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITY:

 
 A. DESCRIPTION OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Sr. 
No.

Contingent Liability Brief Description

I

Claims against the Bank not 
acknowledged as debts 

This item represents certain demands made in legal matters against the 
Bank in the normal course of business and customer claims arising in 
operational issues and fraud cases. The Bank does not expect the outcome 
of these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s 
financial conditions, results of operations or cash flows.

II

Liability on account of outstanding 
forward exchange contracts

The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts in its normal course of 
business, to exchange currencies at a pre-fixed price at a future date. This 
item represents the notional principal amount of such contracts, which 
are derivative instruments. With respect to the transactions entered into 
with its customers, the Bank generally enters into off-setting transactions 
in the inter-bank market. This results in generation of a higher number of 
outstanding transactions and hence a large value of gross notional principal 
of the portfolio, while the net market risk is lower.

III

Guarantees given on behalf of 
constituents in India and outside India As a part of its banking activities, the Bank issues guarantees on behalf of its 

customers. Guarantees generally represent irrevocable assurances that the 
Bank will make payments in the event of customer failing to fulfill its financial 
or performance obligations.
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iv

Acceptances, endorsements and
other obligations

This item represents the documentary credits issued by the Bank in favor 
of third parties on behalf of its customers, as part of its trade finance 
banking activities with a view to augment the customer’s credit standing. 
Through these instruments, the Bank undertakes to make payments for its 
customer’s obligations, either directly or in case the customer fails to fulfill 
their financial or performance obligations.

v

Liability in respect of interest rate and 
currency swaps and credit default 
swaps.

 

This item represents the notional principal amount of various derivative 
instruments which the Bank undertakes in its normal course of business. 
The Bank offers these products to its customers to enable them to 
transfer, modify or reduce their foreign exchange and interest rate risks. 
The Bank also undertakes these contracts to manage its own interest 
rate and foreign exchange positions. With respect to the transactions 
entered into with its customers, the Bank generally enters into off-
setting transactions in the inter-bank market. This results in generation 
of a higher number of outstanding transactions and hence a large value 
of gross notional principal of the portfolio, while the net market risk is  
lower.

The Bank underwrites Credit Default Swap (CDS) transaction for managing 
credit risks associated with Indian Corporate Bonds.

vi

Liability in respect of other derivative 
contracts.

This item represents the notional principal amount of various currency 
options which the Bank undertakes in its normal course of business. 
The Bank offers these products to its customers to enable them to 
reduce their foreign exchange risks. With respect to the transactions 
entered into with its customers, the Bank generally enters into off-setting 
transactions in the inter-bank market. This results in generation of a 
higher number of outstanding transactions, while the net market risk is  
lower.
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vii

Liability on account of disputed 
Income Tax, Interest Tax, Penalty and 
Interest Demands The Bank is a party to various taxation matters in respect of which appeals 

are pending. The Bank expects the outcome of the appeals to be favourable 
based on decisions on similar issues in the previous years by the Appellate 
Authorities, based on the facts of the case and the provisions of Income Tax 
Act, 1961.

viii

Others items for which the Bank is 
contingently liable

This item represents the following :

a) the guarantees issued by the Bank in favour of statutory authorities 
and others on its own behalf, as part of normal business activity  
and 

b) the amount transferred to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund 
(DEAF) - In terms of guidelines of Depositor Education and Awareness 
Fund (DEAF) Scheme 2014, the Bank transfers unclaimed amounts 
including interest accrued pertaining to customers whose accounts 
were not operated or amounts were not claimed for more than 10 
years to ‘RBI DEAF Fund’.

 
 B. Long term contracts

  

  The Bank has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts including derivative contracts are assessed for material 
foreseeable losses.  At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ 
accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts including derivative contracts has been made 
in the books of account.

 
C. Pending litigations

  

  The Bank’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Bank primarily by the borrowers, customers and proceedings 
pending with Income Tax authorities. The Bank has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately 
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial  
statements.
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  In case of IDBI Asset Management Ltd., 

  i) 

   For the AY 2015-16 the Income Tax Department vide its assessment order under section 143(3) dated 26-12-2017 
disallowed certain expenditures thereby reducing the loss and initiated penalty proceedings under section 271(1)(c) of 
the Income Tax Act. The Company has filed an appeal against the said assessment. No provision has been made in this 
regard.

  ii) 

`

` 

   In the MVAT assessment for the financial year 2011-12, the VAT department has disallowed the set-off claimed of 
purchase VAT paid on the purchase of Gold in the IDBI MF Gold ETF scheme and raised a demand of ` 0.43 Crore on the 
Company. The Company has also filed an appeal against this assessment.  No provision has been made in this regard. 
An adhoc payment under protest of ` 0.15 Crore had been made during the previous year.

  iii) 

   M/s Shree Ram Enterprises (the Contractor) had agreement with the company to provide employees on contract basis 
and according to agreement the contractor is solely liable for all the liabilities. The company has during the year paid 
`  0.04 Crore to the employees of M/s Shree Ram Enterprises which according to the company is recoverable and hence 
the liability will be Nil.

  In case of IDBI Capital Market & Securities Ltd.,

  i) 

   Other items for which the Company is contingently liable-

   1. ` ` ` `

    Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt – ` 0.14 Crore (` 0.11 Crore) including interest @ 18% 
amounting to ` 0.01 Crore (` 0.01 Crore).

   2. 

a)  Disputed Income Tax Matters

`  / (` in Crore)

Financial Year Disputed Tax Amount

2020-2021 2019-2020

2012-13 0.25 0.25

2013-14 0.22 0.22

      

      Disputed Income Tax matters are pending before various Appellate Authorities. The Company has also 
been advised by its legal counsel that the tax demand against the Company is untenable and likelihood of 
demand being upheld is low. Accordingly no provision in respect thereof has been made.
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      In respect of Assessment Years 2006-07 and 2008-09, the Income Tax Dept. has gone in appeal before 
High Court pertaining to some of the expenses allowed to the Company in appellate proceedings.  
However there were no tax demands on the Company due to adjustment of carried forward losses/
admitted tax under MAT. In respect of Assessment Year 2012-13 (Financial Year 2011-12), Dept. has 
filed an appeal in High Court against the order of ITAT. This appeal before the High Court is in lodgment 
stage only as on March 31, 2020 and Company has taken necessary steps to defend its position. Similarly 
Company is in appeal in respect of Assessment Years 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19 relating to certain 
disallowances made during the assessment proceedings though there have been no demands raised 
by the Dept. for the respective assessment years. The management is confident that its position is 
likely to be upheld in the appeals pending before appellate authorities and no liability could arise on the  
Company.

    
    b) Disputed Service Tax Matters

      

      Show cause notices have been raised by the Service Tax Dept. for following financial years based on the 
finding during the Service Tax Audit conducted by the Department.             

  `  / (` in Crore)

Financial Year Disputed Service Tax Amount

Current year Previous Year

2012-13 3.19 1.59

2013-14 1.78 1.74

2014-15 1.87 1.78

2015-16 1.77 1.58

2016-17 0.66 0.33

2017-18 0.12 0.11

      ` ` 

      All the show cause notices and demand raised during the year amounting to ` 2.24 Crore (Previous Year: 
NIL) out of the total of ` 9.38 Crore have been contested by the Company and are pending before the 
respective authorities. 
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  In case of IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd.,
  `  / (` in Crore)

Particulars

2020-21 2019-20

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt :

i) 

 Income Tax demand for the AY 2007 – 08 (WITECO) (Company is in  
appeal before the CIT (Appeal))

0.06 0.06

ii)  

` 

 There may arise interest on delayed payment of withholding taxes on securitization transactions amounting to ` 1.61 
Crore (approximately) on various Securitization Trusts, where ITSL is acting as Securitization Trustee for the same.

  In case of Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Ltd.,  
    

 `  / (` in Crore)

Particulars As At March
31, 2021

As At March
31, 2020

Partly paid-up investments  / Nil  / Nil

Underwriting commitments outstanding (in respect of shares and securities)
 / Nil  / Nil

Claims, other than those under policies, not acknowledged as debts by the 
Company - Claims made by employees for disputes

 / Nil  / Nil

Guarantees given by or on behalf of the Company

0.06  / Nil

Statutory demands/liabilities in dispute, not provided for *

- Income Tax

9.17 17.60

-  

  Service Tax (on account of objections raised by the Office of the 
Commissioner of Service Tax III, Mumbai on certain positions taken 
by the Company)

3.06 6.91

Reinsurance obligations to the extent not provided for in accounts
 / Nil  / Nil

Policy related claims under litigation   

3.66 7.05

* These demands/liabilities are being contested at various adjudicating levels and management including its experts is of the 
view that the same shall not be sustainable and accordingly the management believes that the ultimate outcome of these 
proceedings will not have any material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.
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  In case of IDBI Intech Ltd., 

  i. `

` `

   The Company has provided bank guarantee of ` 3.77 Crore to customers for its IT Projects. As at March 31, 2021, the 
contingent liabilities under these guarantees amounted to ` 3.77 Crore (previous year ` 3.95 Crore).

  ii. ` `

   The Company has contested and has appealed at higher bench against an order passed by the Jaipur High Court 
for a claim to pay compensation amounting to ` 0.04 Crore (previous year ` 0.04 Crore) to one of the ex-employee 
of the erstwhile OBST vertical and expects favorable outcome. The Company has made provision on estimated basis 
including the possible statutory dues. However the outcome to pay any further compensation to other ex-employees 
of the said OBST vertical cannot be ascertained and hence no separate provision, except the retiring benefits, has  
been made.

  iii. Claims for taxes on income:

   Where the Company is in appeal:

   

` `

   a. Income Tax demands of ` 0.05 Crore  (previous year ` 0.05 Crore) have been raised in respect of assessment 
completed with respect to AY 2013-14 and AY 2014-15, arising from certain disallowances by the Income Tax 
Authorities. The Company has appealed against the orders and based on merit, expects favorable outcome. 
Hence no provision against such demand is considered necessary.

   

` ` 

` 

` 

   b. Service tax authority put a demand of ` 0.84 Crore (previous year ` 0.84 Crore) including interest and penalty by 
disallowing certain CENVAT credit availed by the Company during the Service Tax audit in respect of period from 
FY 2012-13 to FY 2017-18. This demand was reduced to ` 0.78 Crore by Commissioner of Central Tax (Appeal). 
The Company has appealed to CESTAT against the orders and based on merit, expects favorable outcome. 
Hence no provision against such demand is considered necessary. However the Company had paid ` 0.51 Crore 
under protest, which is reflected under other non-current assets.

   ` ` 

   c. Demand of VAT made by Sales Tax Authority amounting to ` 0.26 Crore (previous year ` 0.26 Crore) for the period 
from FY 2010-11 to FY 2015-16 has been contested and appeal to Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax. Based 
on merit, the Company expects a favorable outcome on the same. Hence no provision against such demand is 
considered necessary.

    

    * Refer Schedule 12 Contingent Liabilities for quantitative disclosure.



dm{f©H$ [anmoQ>© Annual Report 2020-21

H$m°anmoaoQ> {dh§JmdbmoH$Z
Corporate Overview

gm§{d{YH$ [anmoQ>©
Statutory Reports

{dÎmr¶ {ddaU
Financial Statements

373

g_o{H$V {dÎmr` {ddaUmo§
Schedules to the Consolidated 

H$r AZwgy{M`m§

Financial Statements

13. DISCLOSURE ON PENALTY :

 During the year following penalties were imposed by RBI: 

    `  / (` in Crore)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

1

Penalty for non-compliance of guidelines on cheque collection process.

0.0067 0.012

2

Penalty for non-compliance of guidelines on customer service, guidelines 
in respect of exchange of coins and small denomination notes and 
mutilated notes.

0.067 0.085

3

Penalties imposed by RBI on currency chest in cases of remittances, 
made by currency chests to RBI

0.0094 0.022

4

Penalties for other reasons not mentioned above

0.23 0.06

Total Penalties Paid 0.31 0.18

14. 

Disclosure as per RBI circular dated April 17, 2020 on Covid-19 Regulatory Package - 
Asset classification and provisioning:

 

 

 The SARS-CoV2 virus responsible for Covid-19 continues to spread across the globe and India. This has resulted in a significant 
decline and volatility in global and Indian markets and economic activity. Implementation and extensions of lockdown have resulted in 
disruptions of business and common life. With situation still unfolding, it is difficult to predict time horizons to gauge the impact. The 
major identified challenges for the Bank’s borrowers across various industry sectors is expected to arise from eroding cash flows and 
elongated working capital  cycles. The Bank is gearing itself on all fronts to meet these challenges.  Despite these events and conditions, 
the Bank’s results in future are not expected to be materially adverse or would have an impact on the going concern assumption. The 
liquidity position, ability to service debt or any other commitments, capital or profitability may not have significant effect for the Bank. 
However, Bank is constantly monitoring the status of above parameters.
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 The disclosures as required under RBI circular dated April 17, 2020 for the year ended March 31, 2021 is given below:

 `  / (` in Crore)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Amount

(i)

Respective amounts in SMA/overdue categories, where the moratorium/deferment was extended, 
in terms of paragraph 2 and 3 ( As on March 31, 2020)1

  4,930.00

(ii)  
Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended2

1,372.99

(iii)  
Provisions made as on March 31, 20213

363.00

(iv)

Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages and the residual 
provisions in terms of paragraph 6.

 / Nil

(v)

Residual provisions as of March 31, 2021 in terms of paragraph 6 of the circular

363.00

 1. 
  Represents borrowers which were overdue but standard at February 29, 2020 and continued to be overdue till March 31, 2020.

 2. As on September 30, 2020.

 3. ` ` 

  Total COVID-19 related provision held at March 31, 2021: ` 863 Crores of which ` 363 Crores represents provision for loans 
under moratorium.

15. 
Non-performing Non-SLR investments of the Bank

            ( `  / (` in Crore)

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Opening balance   1,517.71   1,262.16

Additions during the year   1,303.55   2,123.76

Reductions during the year *    837.61   1,868.21

Closing balance 1,983.65   1,517.71

Total provisions held toward NPI

  1,941.64   1,223.35

 ` ` ` ` 

` ` 

 * Includes Investment written down of ` 19.98 Crores (Previous Year: ` 1,815.89 Crores) and Investment Redemption including write 
off / Sale / Settlement of ` 697.53 Crores (Previous Year: ` 2.32 Crores) and Upgradation of Investment of ` 120.10 Crores (Previous 
Year: ` 50.00 Crores).
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16. Asset Quality of the Bank

 Non-Performing Asset (Loans & Advances)

 `  / (` in Crore)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars As a t  
March 31, 2021

As a t  
March 31, 2020

(i)

Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)

1.97 4.19

(ii)

Movement of NPAs (Gross)

 

 

(a) Opening Balance

47,272.37 50,027.94

(b) Addition  during the year

2,631.66 11,021.99

 

(c) Reduction during the year

13,692.08 13,777.56

 

(d) Closing balance

36,211.95 47,272.37

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs  

 

(a) Opening Balance

5,439.49 14,837.44

 

(b) Addition (FTNPA) during the year

1,363.80 4,825.34

 

(c) Reduction (net) during the year

4,283.91 14,223.29

 

(d) Closing balance

2,519.38 5,439.49

(iv)

Movement of provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)

 

 

(a) Opening balance

41,832.89 35,190.49

 

(b) Provisions made during the year

6,038.41 20,079.29

 

(c) Transferred to Countercyclical Prov. Buffer
 / Nil  / Nil

(d) Write-off/write back of excess provision

14,178.73 13,436.89

 

(e) Closing balance

33,692.57 41,832.89

(v)

Provisioning Coverage Ratio (including TWO) computed in 
accordance with the RBI guidelines

96.90% 93.74%
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17. OTHERS

 I. 

During the year Equity Shares were allotted by the Bank as under:           

Beneficiary Type of 
allotment

`

Amount
(` in 

Crore)

`
No. of 
Shares

(Face value 
` 10 each)

(` 
Issue 
Price
(in `)

(`
Share 

premium 
per share 

(in `)

Date of 
Allotment

Government of India

- - - - - -

Life Insurance Corporation 
of India(LIC)

- - - - - -

Any other

Qualified 
Institutional 
Placement (QIP)

1,435.18 371808177 38.60 28.60

December 
19, 2020

 II. Stressed Assets Stabilisation Fund (SASF)

  

`  `

  Bank will be required to meet the shortfall in recovery of Stressed Assets Stabilization Fund (SASF) Trust set up by the Government 
of India, if any, at the time of termination of the trust in September 2024. Accordingly, Bank has made provision of ` 800 Crore, 
during the year ended March 31, 2021, towards the estimated shortfall in recoveries by SASF Trust. Total provision held as on 
March 31, 2021 is ` 1,100 Crore.

  

` 

`  

  The Government of India (GoI), Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services vide its letter dated 5th September 2016, 
advised the Bank to surrender securities of ` 1,064.27 Crores to the GoI representing net impact of the asset exchange of 
Stressed Assets Stabilization Fund (SASF) done by the Bank in 2006. Accordingly as on March 31, 2021, total securities written 
off from SASF account stands at ` 1,064.27 Crore. Thus the full written off has been completed. However, these written off 
securities are not reflected in SGL account as on 31.03.2021 due to pending Government notification for redemption, which 
resulted in difference of the same amount in SGL account.

 III. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure:

  ` ` 
  a. Gross amount required to be spent during the year: ` 2.02 Crore (Previous Year: ` 1.15 Crore)
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  b. Amount spent during the year:

 `  / (` in Crore)

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

In cash  2.02 1.15

Yet to be paid in cash Nil Nil

TOTAL 2.02 1.15

 IV.  

  Additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial statements of parent, subsidiaries and joint ventures having no 
bearing on the true and fair view of the consolidated financial statements and also the information pertaining to the items which 
are not material have not been disclosed in the consolidated financial statement in the view of general clarification issued by ICAI.

 V. 

  Industrial Development Bank of India (eIDBI) was a Statutory Corporation constituted under a special Act of Parliament, i.e., the 
IDBI Act, 1964. It was converted into a Bank in the present name of IDBI Bank constituted as a Company under the Companies 
Act, 1956 in the year 2004. The amount of application money due for refund in respect of IPO in 1995 and unclaimed dividends 
declared by e-IDBI prior to becoming the Company were lying with IDBI Bank. As per the legal opinion obtained from the 
Secretarial Auditors, it was suggested to seek advice from MCA/ IEPF Authority in the matter. Accordingly, IDBI Bank had written 
to MCA/ IEPF Authority to seek advice in this regard. 

  

` 

  In response, IEPF Authority, vide letter dated February 01, 2021 directed IDBI Bank to transfer the unpaid dividends pertaining to 
e-IDBI to IEPF. Pursuant to aforesaid direction, IDBI Bank transferred the amount of ` 7.11 Crore for the financial years 1995-96 
to 2002-03 to IEPF.

 VI. 

  IDBI Bank had been put under a Prompt Corrective Action Framework (PCAF) by RBI.  Considering the improved performance 
parameters, the RBI has taken out the IDBI Bank from the PCAF with effect from March 10, 2021.

 VII. ` 

`  

  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for is ` 146.82 
Crore (` 120.98 Crore). 

 VIII. 

  Pursuant to the provisions of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, certain disclosures are required 
to be made relating to Micro, small & medium enterprise. The Bank is in the process of compiling relevant information from its 
suppliers about their coverage under the said Act. In view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act is not expected to be material.
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Signatures to Schedules '1' to '18' of Accounts

 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

(Rakesh Sharma) (J. Samuel Joseph) (Suresh Khatanhar) (Samaresh Parida) (Ajay Sharma)  (Jyothi Nair)

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
( /DIN: 06846594)

Dy. Managing Director
( /DIN: 02262530)

Dy. Managing Director

( /DIN: 03022106)
Director

( /DIN: 01853823) Executive Director & 
Chief Financial Officer

Company 
Secretary

As per our report of even date

For K S Aiyar & Co. For M P Chitale & Co.

/Chartered Accountants /Chartered Accountants

/FRN : 100186W /FRN : 101851W

Satish Kelkar Ashutosh Pednekar

 (  038934)/Partner  
(M.No. 038934)

 (  041037)/Partner (M.No. 041037)

/ Place: Mumbai

/ Date: May 03, 2021

 IX. 

` ` `  

  Pending industry wide bipartite settlement on wage revision (due with effect from November 2017), a sum of  ` 294 Crores 
(Previous Year: ` 350 Crores) has been provided by the Bank during the year on this account on estimated basis. (Cumulative 
provision held as on March 31, 2021 was ` 773 Crore).

 X. 

  In case of the joint venture, Ageas Federal Life Insurance Company Limited, proportionate values have been considered 
equivalent to the stake.

 XI. 

  Figures of the previous year, are disclosed in brackets and are regrouped / rearranged, so as to confirm with the presentation 
made for the current year.
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31 _mM© 2021 H$mo g_mßV df© Ho$ {bE

 for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

 (1) 
  Profit/ (Loss) before tax and extra-ordinary items 2484 73 72 (8896 49 73)

 (2) 
  Adjustments for non cash items:

 - 
  (Profit) / Loss on sale of Fixed Assets ( Net )  42 02 4 74 25

 - 
  Depreciation (Net of Revaluation Reserve) 396 84 73 394 37 92

 - 
  Provisions/ Write off of Loans/ Investments and other provisions 4712 31 24 13698 65 26

 - 
  (Profit)/ Loss on revaluation of Investments (1 37 24) (2 90 84)

 7592 94 47 5198 36 86

 (3) 
  Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:

  - Investments (1613 19 26) 10096 85 62

  - Advances 1332 12 91 4895 39 35

  - Other Assets 3084 09 79 (2870 94 55)

  - Refund/ (payment) of taxes (265 85 37) (943 88 66)

 (4) 
  Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:

 - Borrowings (20840 80 28) (8538 86 78)

 - Deposits 8492 95 39 (4976 25 54)

 - Other liabilities and provisions 5661 17 75 (2652 18 11)

 
 Net Cash used in/generated from Operating activities 3443 45 40 208 48 19

B. Cash Flow from Investing activities

 - 
  Purchase (net of sale) of fixed assets (58 65 99) (295 97 32)

 
 Net cash used in / raised from Investing activities (58 65 99) (295 97 32)
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31 _mM© 2021 H$mo g_mßV df© Ho$ {bE

 for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` ‘000  / ` in ‘000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended 
March 31, 2020

C. Cash Flow from Financing activities

 - Issue of Equity Shares* 1435 19 22 9300 00 00

 - Dividend and dividend tax paid   (6 83 21) (21 46 60)

 
 Net cash used in / raised from Financing activities 1428 36 01 9278 53 40

 
 NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 4813 15 42 9191 04 26

 
 OPENING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 30494 96 50 21303 92 24

 
 CLOSING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 35308 11 92 30494 96 50

 Note to Cash Flow Statement:

 
 Cash and Cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the 

following Balance Sheet items:

 
 Cash & Balances with Reserve Bank of India (Schedule 6) 13013 12 54 10539 17 27

 
 Balances with banks & money at call and short notice (Schedule 7) 22294 99 38 19955 79 23

 / TOTAL 35308 11 92 30494 96 50

* Current year number is net of share issue expenes

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Schedule 17 and 18)  

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.  

 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

(Rakesh Sharma) (J. Samuel Joseph) (Suresh Khatanhar) (Samaresh Parida) (Ajay Sharma)  (Jyothi Nair)

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
( /DIN: 06846594)

Dy. Managing Director
( /DIN: 02262530)

Dy. Managing Director

( /DIN: 03022106)
Director

( /DIN: 01853823) Executive Director & 
Chief Financial Officer

Company 
Secretary

As per our report of even date

For K S Aiyar & Co. For M P Chitale & Co.

/Chartered Accountants /Chartered Accountants

/FRN : 100186W /FRN : 101851W

Satish Kelkar Ashutosh Pednekar

 (  038934)/Partner  
(M.No. 038934)

 (  041037)/Partner (M.No. 041037)

/ Place: Mumbai

/ Date: May 03, 2021
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H§$nZr A{Y{Z`_, 2013 H$r Ymam 129 
Statement Pursuant to Section 129 

Ho$ AZwgaU _o§ {ddaU

of Companies Act, 2013

¬¸í¡¸¸½Š¸ú ˆ¿Åœ¸¢›¸¡¸¸Ê/ ¬¸í¸¡¸ˆÅ ˆ¿Åœ¸¢›¸¡¸¸Ê/ ¬¸¿¡¸ºÆ÷¸ „Ô¸Ÿ¸¸Ê ˆ½Å ¢¨¸î¸ú¡¸ ¢¨¸¨¸£μ¸¸Ê ˆÅú œÏŸ¸º‰¸ ¢¨¸©¸½«¸÷¸¸‡Â 
STATEMENT CONTAINING SAILENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF 
SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES     

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

 (` '000 Ÿ¸½¿) / (` in '000s)

¢¨¸¨¸£μ¸
Particulars

¢¥¸. 
IDBI Capital 

Market & 
Securities Ltd.

¢¥¸. 
IDBI 

Trusteeship 
Services Ltd

¢¥¸.
IDBI Asset 

Management 
Ltd.

‡Ÿ¸‡ûÅ ’ï¬’ú 
ˆ¿Åœ¸›¸ú ¢¥¸. 
IDBI MF 
Trustee 

Company Ltd.

IDBI Intech Ltd

¡¸¢™ ¬¸í¸¡¸ˆÅ ¬¸¿¬˜¸¸ ˆÅú ¢£œ¸¸½¢’ôŠ¸ ‚¨¸¢š¸ š¸¸¢£÷¸¸ 

Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

Not Applicable

¢¨¸î¸ú¡¸ ¨¸«¸Ä ˆÅú ‚¿¢÷¸Ÿ¸ ÷¸¸£ú‰¸ ˆÅ¸½ Ÿ¸ºÍ¸ ÷¸˜¸¸ 
¢¨¸¢›¸Ÿ¸¡¸ ™£ ˆÅú ¢£œ¸¸½¢’ôŠ¸
Reporting currency and Exchange 
rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries.

Not Applicable

Share capital

128 10 00 6 03 28 200 00 00  20 00 15 55 15

Reserves & surplus

184 66 09 243 37 55 (86 62 41) 1 40 52 74 50 93

Total assets

365 34 18 256 18 63 116 58 21 1 64 15 99 53 65

Total Liabilities (excluding capital and 
reserves)

52 58 09 6 77 80 3 20 62  3 63 9 47 57

¢›¸¨¸½©¸
Investments

116 99 10 146 06 83 105 54 94 1 51 31   -

Turnover

93 79 35 73 83 87 31 98 33  36 01 115 06 21
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 (` '000 Ÿ¸½¿) / (` in '000s)

¢¨¸¨¸£μ¸
Particulars

¢¥¸. 
IDBI Capital 

Market & 
Securities Ltd.

¢¥¸. 
IDBI 

Trusteeship 
Services Ltd

¢¥¸.
IDBI Asset 

Management 
Ltd.

‡Ÿ¸‡ûÅ ’ï¬’ú 
ˆ¿Åœ¸›¸ú ¢¥¸. 
IDBI MF 
Trustee 

Company Ltd.

IDBI Intech Ltd

Profit before taxation

10 37 10 54 10 28 7 22 26  4 76 14 61 78

Provision for taxation

2 85 94 14 00 85 2 69 46  1 26 2 54 89

Profit after taxation

7 51 16 40 09 43 4 52 80  3 49 12 06 89

Proposed Dividend (including 
corporate dividend tax)

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

©¸½¡¸£š¸¸¢£÷¸¸ ˆÅ¸ %
% of shareholding

100% 54.70% *66.67% 100% 100.00%

* Balance holding of 33.33%  is held by IDBI Capital Market & Securities Ltd.     

¢’œœ¸¢μ¸¡¸¸¿ / Notes:      

1.  
 Turnover is the total income reported by each of the entities in their financial statements.

2. 

 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: None     

3. 
 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: None     
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

 (` '000 Ÿ¸½¿) / (` in '000s)

ÇÅŸ¸ 
¬¸¿. 
Sr. 
No.

¬¸í¡¸¸½Š¸ú ˆ¿Åœ¸¢›¸¡¸¸Ê/ ¬¸¿¡¸ºÆ÷¸ „Ô¸Ÿ¸¸Ê ˆ½Å ›¸¸Ÿ¸
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures 

¢¥¸.
Biotech 

Consortium 
India Limited

¢›¸Š¸Ÿ¸ ¢¥¸. 
National 

Securities 
Depository Ltd

¢›¸Š¸Ÿ¸ ¢¥¸. 
North Eastern 
Development 

Finance 
Corporation 

Limited Ÿ¸Ê ±¸¸÷¸) 
Ageas Federal 
Life Insurance 

Co. Ltd. 
(Formerly known 
as IDBI Federal 
Life Insurance 

Company 
Limited)

1.       

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
 

March 31, 2020
 

March 31, 2020  March 31, 2020
 

March 31, 2021

2.       

¬¸¿¡¸ºÆ÷¸ „Ô¸Ÿ¸¸Ê ˆ½Å ©¸½¡¸£
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held 
by the company on the year end

 

Number of equity shares

150 00 04 1044 00 00 2500 00 02 20000 00 00

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 
Venture

1 50 00 10 44 00 25 00 00 200 00 00

š¸¸¢£÷¸¸ ˆÅ¸ ¢¨¸¬÷¸¸£
Extend of Holding %

27.93% 26.10% 25.00% 25.00%

3.       

Description of how there is significant 
influence

¬¸í¡¸¸½Š¸ú ˆ¿Åœ¸›¸ú Ÿ¸¸›¸¸ 

Holding in Biotech 
Consortium India 

Ltd being 27.93%, 
considered as an 
Associate as per 

AS-23

¬¸í¡¸¸½Š¸ú ˆ¿Åœ¸›¸ú Ÿ¸¸›¸¸ 

Holding in NSDL 
being 26.10 %, 

considered as an 
Associate as per 

AS-23

¬¸í¡¸¸½Š¸ú ˆ¿Åœ¸›¸ú Ÿ¸¸›¸¸ 

Holding in 
North Eastern 
Development 

Finance 
Corporation 

Ltd being 25%, 
considered as an 
Associate as per 

AS-23

ˆÅú š¸¸¢£÷¸¸ ˆÅ¸½ 

Holding in Ageas 
Federal Life 

Insurance Co. 
Ltd. being 25%, 
considered as a 
Joint Venture as 

per AS-27

4.       

Reason why the associate/joint venture is 
not Consolidated

N.A. N.A. N.A.
¥¸¸Š¸» ›¸íú¿ 

N.A.
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(Rakesh Sharma) (J. Samuel Joseph) (Suresh Khatanhar) (Samaresh Parida) (Ajay Sharma)  (Jyothi Nair)

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
( /DIN: 06846594)

Dy. Managing Director
( /DIN: 02262530)

Dy. Managing Director

( /DIN: 03022106)

¢›¸™½©¸ˆÅ
Director

( /DIN: 01853823)
¢¨¸î¸ú¡¸ ‚¢š¸ˆÅ¸£ú
Executive Director & 
Chief Financial Officer

Company 
Secretary

/ Place: Mumbai

/ Date: May 03, 2021

 (` '000 Ÿ¸½¿) / (` in '000s)

ÇÅŸ¸ 
¬¸¿. 
Sr. 
No.

¬¸í¡¸¸½Š¸ú ˆ¿Åœ¸¢›¸¡¸¸Ê/ ¬¸¿¡¸ºÆ÷¸ „Ô¸Ÿ¸¸Ê ˆ½Å ›¸¸Ÿ¸
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures 

¢¥¸.
Biotech 

Consortium 
India Limited

¢›¸Š¸Ÿ¸ ¢¥¸. 
National 

Securities 
Depository Ltd

¢›¸Š¸Ÿ¸ ¢¥¸. 
North Eastern 
Development 

Finance 
Corporation 

Limited Ÿ¸Ê ±¸¸÷¸) 
Ageas Federal 
Life Insurance 

Co. Ltd. 
(Formerly known 
as IDBI Federal 
Life Insurance 

Company 
Limited)

5.       

Networth attributable to Shareholding as 
per latest audited Balance Sheet

8 19 08 197 63 75 214 88 58 259 65 18

6.       

í¸¢›¸ 
Profit / Loss for the year ended March 31, 
2021

i.  
 Considered in Consolidation

  0 83 45 72   0 33 22 22

i.  
 Not Considered in Consolidation

0 0 0 0

¢’œœ¸¢μ¸¡¸¸¿
Notes:      

1.  
 Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: None     

2.  
 Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year :None

3.  
 National Securities Depository Ltd has been consolidated in accordance with AS-23 based on unaudited results as at September 30, 

2020.     

4.  

 The financials of Pondicherry Industrial Promotion Development and Investment Corporation Ltd. have not been consolidated on 
account of non receipt of financial statements/annual report. The investment in the Associate is written down to rupee one.

5. 

 The Networth of Biotech Consortium India Limited,National Securities Depository Ltd and North Eastern Development Finance 
Corporaton Limited taken as per FY 2020 due to non availability of the desired information.


